
City of Kodiak Regular Council Meeting Agenda for February 13, 2020 

7:30 p.m., at 710 Mill Bay Road, Assembly Chambers (Room 232) 

I. Call to Order/Roll Call

Invocation/Pledge of Allegiance

II. Previous Minutes

Approval of Minutes of the January 23, 2020, Regular Council Meeting .......................................1 

III. Persons to Be Heard

a. Public Comments (limited to 3 minutes) (486-3231)

IV. Unfinished Business

a. Second Reading and Public Hearing, Ordinance No. 1392, Authorizing a 25-Year lease

of Certain Real Property in Trident Basin to Redemption Inc. D/B/A Island Air Service..7

V. New Business

a. Resolution No. 2020–06, Adopting an Alternative Method for the FY2020 Shared

Fisheries Business Tax Program and Certifying That This Allocation Method Fairly

Represents the Distribution of Significant Effects of Fisheries Business Activity in

Fisheries Management Area 13: Kodiak Area...................................................................23 

b. Resolution No. 2020–07, Appointing a Member to the Kodiak Fisheries Development

Association.........................................................................................................................34 

c. Resolution No. 2020–08, Rescinding Resolution No. 2012-05 and Reestablishing

Standing and Special Rules of the Council........................................................................39 

d. Approval of Vertical Bridge Sublease to Cellco Partnership, D/B/A Verizon Wireless...44

e. Acceptance of the FY2019 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report and Audit.............65 

f. Authorization of Payment to Golden Alaska Excavating, LLC for Equipment/Operator

Cost Contracted Work at the Snow Dump.........................................................................67 

VI. Staff Reports

a. City Manager

b. City Clerk

VII. Mayor’s Comments

VIII. Council Comments

IX. Audience Comments (limited to 3 minutes) (486-3231)

X. Executive Session

a. Discussion With the City Attorney About the City of Kodiak - Ocean Beauty Lease

Agreement Post Termination Issues..................................................................................70 

XI. Adjournment



(This page left intentionally blank.) 



DRAFT 
MINUTES OF THE REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 

OF THE CITY OF KODIAK 

HELD THURSDAY, JANUARY 23, 2020 

IN THE BOROUGH ASSEMBLY CHAMBERS 

I. MEETING CALLED TO ORDER/INVOCATION/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Mayor Pat Branson called the meeting to order at 7:30 p.m. Randall C. Bishop, Charles E. Da-

vidson, Richard H. Walker, and John B. Whiddon were present and constituted a quorum. Coun-

cilmember Haines was excused and not considered absent due to his attendance to the Alaska

Marine Highway System Advocacy Meeting in Juneau on behalf of the City. Councilmember

Laura B. Arboleda was absent. City Manager Mike Tvenge, City Clerk Nova Javier, and Deputy

Clerk Michelle Shuravloff-Nelson were also present.

Salvation Army Major Dave Davis gave the invocation and the Pledge of Allegiance was recited.

II. PREVIOUS MINUTES

Councilmember Whiddon MOVED to approve the minutes of the January 9, 2020, regular meet-

ing as presented.

The roll call vote was Councilmembers Bishop, Davidson, Walker, and Whiddon in favor.

Councilmember Arboleda was absent and Councilmember Haines was excused. The motion

passed.

III. PERSONS TO BE HEARD

a. Proclamation: Applauding the USCG and Proclaiming USCG Appreciation Day

Councilmember Whiddon read the proclamation, which urges all citizens to recognize our Coast 

Guard community for their individual and collective efforts in making Kodiak and all the navi-

gable waters of Alaska a safer and better place to live, work, and play. The City applauds and 

proclaims February 7, 2020, as Coast Guard Appreciation Day. 

Commander Daniel Rogers accepted the proclamation on behalf of the USCG. 

b. Public Comments

Jason Bunch a twenty-two year resident of Kodiak and father of two boys, said he supports the 

youth activities. He referred to the aquatics, gymnasium, teen center, and the ice rink which all 

offer a variety of activities. He said the services have positively impacted his family and he 

thanked the City for the services. He expressed his support for Parks and Recreation Facility Up-

grade, especially for the enhanced ice rink. 

Brian Himelbloom stated he shared his concerns to the Alaska Marine Transportation Advisory 

Board regarding the reduced ferry services. He thanked the Mayor for her work on this board. He 

encouraged local involvement by committee development. He commented on the Space Board 

Complex and stated the public access and comment period was minimal and shared his disap-

pointment with the Council. 

1

8507



Mayor Branson said there are three public seats for the new Governor’s Marine Highway System 

Re-Shaping Committee and referred him to the State of Alaska’s website. 

Dan Ogg applauded the Mayor and Council for including the parks and recreation facility up-

grade on the state and federal capital list. He said the volunteer group will meet next week to fur-

ther progress the plan for the new facility. He said the indoor walking track was very important 

and should be included in the facility upgrade plan. He highlighted that John Glover is very in-

volved in the planning process.  

IV. UNFINISHED BUSINESS

None.

V. NEW BUSINESS

a. First Reading, Ordinance No. 1392, Authorization of a 25-Year Lease of Certain Real

Property in Trident Basin to Redemption, Incorporated d/b/a Island Air Service

Mayor Branson read Ordinance No. 1392 by title. Island Air has leased two parcels of land at the 

Trident Basin Float Plane facility since the summer of 2011. In November 2019, the City re-

ceived a request to expand the lease agreement in connection with its merger of operations with 

Andrew Airways, Inc. The proposed lease agreement includes two smaller parcels used for the 

placement of company aircraft fueling tanks. The larger parcels are used for the company’s flight 

crew and customers. This ordinance will authorize the twenty-five year lease with Redemption 

Inc. d/b/a Island Air Service 

Councilmember Davidson MOVED to pass Ordinance No. 1392 in first reading and advance to 

second reading and public hearing at the next regular or special Council meeting.  

The roll call vote was Councilmembers Bishop, Davidson, Walker, and Whiddon in favor. 

Councilmember Arboleda was absent and Councilmember Haines was excused. The motion 

passed. 

b. Resolution No. 2020–03, Rescinding Resolution No. 2014–36 And Reestablishing a Rec-

ords Retention Schedule

Mayor Branson read Resolution No. 2020–03 by title. Records Retention Schedules (RRS) are a 

key element in effective records management programs. This Resolution No. 2020–03 will re-

scind and replace all prior Records Retention Schedule. The last RRS was adopted by Resolution 

No. 2014–36. The City-wide RRS determines the length of time a record is kept due to its opera-

tional, legal, fiscal, and historical purposes. The City-wide records management program pro-

vides a filing system for all departmental records throughout the life cycle of each record, 

including the transfer to offsite storage, and the destruction of records. There is a permanent re-

tention for some records within the City departments. During the fall of 2019 the City Clerk, 

Records Manager, Department Heads, and Records Coordinators reviewed and recommended 

changes to the Records Retention Schedule.  

2

8508



Councilmember Bishop MOVED to adopt Resolution No. 2020–03. 

Councilmember Whiddon thanked the Deputy Clerk for her work on the RRS. 

The roll call vote was Councilmembers Bishop, Davidson, Walker, and Whiddon in favor. 

Councilmember Arboleda was absent and Councilmember Haines was excused. The motion 

passed. 

b. Resolution No. 2020–04, Adopting a FY2021 State Capital Improvement Program List

Mayor Branson read Resolution No. 2020–04 by title. Each year the City identifies capital im-

provement projects important to the maintenance and/or improvement of the City’s infrastructure 

as well as issues that are important to the City or greater community. Council reviewed the draft 

outlining the proposed state requests and issues at the December 10, 2019, work session.  

Resolution No. 2020–04 reflects the prioritized list of funding requests for the City’s main infra-

structure related projects as outlined for FY2021 and will be submitted to our Alaska Legislature, 

via the Capital Project Submission & Information System (CAPSIS) upon adoption by Council. 

The five projects included in the resolution will provide formality to the City’s concerns and al-

low the Mayor, Council, and staff to promote the City’s interests. Resolution No. 2020–04 re-

flects the list, which Council and staff recommend for approval. 

Councilmember Davidson MOVED to adopt Resolution No. 2020–04. 

Councilmember Bishop MOVED to amend Resolution No. 2020–04 by substitution. 

The roll call vote on the amendment was Councilmembers Bishop, Davidson, Walker, and 

Whiddon in favor.  Councilmember Arboleda was absent and Councilmember Haines was ex-

cused. The motion passed. 

The roll call vote on the main motion as amended was Councilmembers Bishop, Davidson, 

Walker, and Whiddon in favor.  Councilmember Arboleda was absent and Councilmember 

Haines was excused. The motion passed. 

d. Resolution No. 2020–05, Adopting the Federal Fiscal Year 2020 Supported Federal Is-

sues List and Fiscal Year 2021 Federal Projects Capital List

Mayor Branson read Resolution No. 2020–05 by title. Resolution No. 2020–05 reflects the prior-

itized list of funding for the City’s main infrastructure related projects and other federal issues as 

outlined above for FFY2021 and will be submitted to our Alaska delegation upon adoption by 

Council. These are not the only funding and policy issues the City will pursue in the coming 

year, but they are important because they benefit the entire community and region. The five pro-

jects and two issues included in the resolution will provide formality to the City’s concerns and 

allow Mayor Branson and staff to promote the City’s interests. Resolution No. 2020–05 reflects 

the list which Council, staff, and the City’s federal lobbyist recommend for approval. 

Councilmember Walker MOVED to adopt Resolution No. 2020–05. 

3

8509



Councilmember Whiddon MOVED to amend Resolution No. 2020–05 by amending the amount 

for the Parks and Recreation Facility Upgrade on page 3 of 5 of the Resolution by striking out 

$3,500,000 and inserting $3,100,000. 

Councilmember Whiddon made a comment about the importance of public input. 

The roll call vote on the amendment was Councilmembers Bishop, Davidson, Walker, and 

Whiddon in favor. Councilmember Arboleda was absent and Councilmember Haines was ex-

cused. The motion passed. 

The roll call vote on the main motion as amended was Councilmembers Bishop, Davidson, 

Walker, and Whiddon in favor. Councilmember Arboleda was absent and Councilmember 

Haines was excused. The motion passed. 

e. Authorization to Award a Supply Agreement for Community Jail Meals to MEA En-

terprises (dba KFC Taco Bell of Kodiak) and Sealko, Inc (dba Subway of Kodiak)

The City of Kodiak Police Department issued a request for proposal (RFP) for jail meals for the 

Kodiak Community Jail on November 29, 2019. Proposals were due on January 10, 2020. The 

RFP was advertised in the Kodiak Daily Mirror and on the Department’s Facebook page. The 

Department only received one (1) proposal from the current vendor, Subway and KFC/Taco Bell 

of Kodiak, to provide all meals. The price per person for 3 meals a day has been quoted at $19.99 

for the first year (subsequent years would increase with the Anchorage CPI). Similar to Alaska 

DOC practices, the jail only serves two meals a day on weekends and holidays. The meals from 

Subway and KFC/Taco Bell are supplemented with apple sauce, milk, juice, and coffee which 

are purchased through other grocery stores.     

Councilmember Davidson MOVED to authorize the award of a Supply Agreement for Commu-

nity Jail Meals to MEA Enterprises (dba KFC Taco Bell of Kodiak) and Sealko, Inc (dba Sub-

way of Kodiak) for five years with funds coming from the Corrections meals for prisoners line 

item and authorize the City Manager to execute the documents on behalf of the City.  

The roll call vote was Councilmembers Bishop, Davidson, Walker, and Whiddon in favor. 

Councilmember Arboleda was absent and Councilmember Haines was excused. The motion 

passed. 

VI. STAFF REPORTS

a. City Manager

Manager Tvenge commended Public Works for the plowing and removal of snow. He said the 

snow dumping station located above Hillside Drive was full; therefore, snow will be hauled to 

the Gibson Cove site. He stated that Public Works intends to remove additional accumulated 

snow piles and berms. He asked the public to allow equipment to get into those tight areas and 

remove vehicles that are stranded or left on city streets. He said he will be meeting with the Mu-

nicipal Airport lease holders, which will be held Thursday, January 30, 2020, at 6 p.m. in the Li-

brary’s multi-purpose room. He shared that the purpose of the meeting will be to discuss the new 

lease agreements and any concerns or improvement ideas for the airport. 

4

8510



Manager Tvenge provided an update that the City and Borough staff have worked on a joint 

Tsunami Siren Request for Proposal (RFP) advertisement and expect to publish the (RFP) the 

first week of February. He stated that the proposal lists the city and borough as separate projects, 

but the intent is to achieve best pricing with the total siren count. He said the proposals are due 

back on March 20. 

b. City Clerk

City Clerk Javier informed the public of the next scheduled Council planning work session, the 

Council work session, and regular meeting.  

VII. MAYOR’S COMMENTS

Mayor Branson thanked Mr. Himelbloom for his comments regarding the Alaska Marine High-

way. She referred to the State’s new committee for the Marine Highway System reshaping and

encouraged citizens that are interested to apply by going to the State’s website for boards and

commissions. She expressed her appreciation for Councilmember Haines and Representative

Stutes for testifying during the Transportation Committee meeting. She said AML is working on

advocating for the coastal communities transportation needs too. She said the Legislature has

started and they are receiving updates from the City’s lobbyist. She thanked the Public Works

staff for all their work on the snow removal. She said the USCG appreciation dinner will be up-

coming. She stated she will be traveling and unable to attend; however, Councilmember Whid-

don will be in attendance. She confirmed the importance of healthy activities and would like to

see the Parks and Recreation Facility upgrade to include the indoor track, which may also help

with healthcare grants. She shared these activities contribute to the quality of life in Kodiak.

VIII. COUNCIL COMMENTS

Councilmember Whiddon acknowledged the Public Works for the superb job and hard work. He

stated that department heads and staff do a lot of works behind the scenes to keep the City’s ac-

tivities evolving. He shared that Kodiak was the fifth USCG city in the nation and commented on

the importance of the designation.

Councilmember Davidson stated he was traveling. He wished everyone a healthy and happy

2020. He said he looks forward to an indoor track. He said he is appreciative of the active volun-

teer group within the community.

Councilmember Walker thanked the Kodiak Police Department for helping with the bear prob-

lem. He thanked Public Works for their hard work and he stated he really appreciates the work of

the Baranof group. He thanked Mike and his staff for their hard work.

Councilmember Bishop thanked the community members that provided feedback during the

meeting. He said there is a planning meeting this Saturday and he referred to the topics for dis-

cussion.

IX. AUDIENCE COMMENTS

5

8511



Major Dave Davis, Salvation Army Representative, reported on the nonprofit grant they re-

ceived from the City. He said they have used $4000 of the $15,000 of the funds received. He 

provided a report of the services that were provided and he expressed appreciation for the com-

munity’s effort to help with food donations and clarified that the Salvation Army has been a 

steward for the food services. 

Brian Himelbloom expressed his concern regarding sidewalks that were not shoveled and the 

public not removing their vehicles for snow plowing.  

Clerk Javier stated the Councilmember Haines was on business travel and his absence from the 

regular meeting was excused. 

X. ADJOURNMENT

Councilmember Davidson MOVED to adjourn the meeting.

The roll call vote was Councilmembers Bishop, Davidson, Walker, and Whiddon in favor.

Councilmember Arboleda was absent and Councilmember Haines was excused. The motion

passed.

The meeting adjourned at 8:20 p.m.

CITY OF ODIAK 

MAYOR 

ATTEST: 

CITY CLERK 

Minutes Approved:  

6

8512



UNFINISHED BUSINESS 



MEMORANDUM TO COUNCIL 

To: Mayor Branson and City Councilmembers 

From: Mike Tvenge, City Manager "'lW( 

Thru: Josie Bahnke, Deputy City Manager 

Date: February 13, 2020 

Agenda Item: IV.a. Second Reading and Public Hearing, Ordinance No. 1392, Authorization of
a 25-Year Lease of Certain Real Property in Trident Basin to Redemption, 
Inc. D/8/ A Island Air Service 

SUMMARY: Island Air has leased two parcels of land at the Trident Basin Float Plane facility since the 
summer of 2011. In November 2019, the City received a request to expand the lease agreement in 
connection with its merger of operations with Andrew Airways, Inc. The proposed lease agreement 
includes two smaller parcels used for the placement pf company aircraft fueling tanks. The larger parcels 
are used for the company's flight crew and customers. Staff recommends Council adopt Ordinance No. 
1392 after the public hearing. This ordinance will authorize the twenty-five year lease with Redemption 
Inc. d/b/a Island Air Service (Attachment B). 

PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTION: In previous years Council has approved leases to other air taxi 
services for both office buildings and fuel facilities at Trident Basin. On January 23, 2020, the Council 
passed this ordinance in first reading and advanced it to a second reading and public hearing to 
February 13, 2020. 

DISCUSSION: Island Air Service initiated a request to lease additional property at Trident Basin Float 
Plane Facility in November 2019. Negotiations were held with the business owners of Redemption Inc. 
d/b/a Island Air Service including a survey and legal descriptions to prepare the lease documents. 

Because of building code and fire code requirements, any building needs to be separated from the fuel 
tanks by a minimum of 25 feet. The building lease sites are approximately 2,539 and 2,700 square feet 
respectively. 

Based on a recent appraisal completed by MacSwain Associates, annual market rent is estimated to be 
$23,700 and the lease was constructed with that value in addition to a 2% annual rent increase beginning 
July 1, 2020 and each subsequent July 1. City Council may adjust the annual rent every five years in 
accordance with Kodiak City Code 18.20.220. 

FEBRUARY 13, 2020 
Agenda Item IV .a Memo Page 1 of 2 

7



. \ 

ALTERNATIVES: 

1) Adopt Ordinance No. 1392, which will authorize the lease with Redemption Inc. d/b/a Island Air

Service as identified in the attached lease and drawing (Attachment B), which is staffs

recommendation, because ongoing leases at the City's airports are supported by Council and

enhance revenues for the airports.

2) Do not authorize Ordinance No. 1392. This is not recommended, because the goal of the Trident

Basin Float Plane Facility is to support stability and future growth of the facility.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: The revenues from the lease will improve revenues in the Trident Basin 

Airport Enterprise Fund. 

LEGAL: The lease proposal was discussed and drafted by the City Attorney. The lease must be approved 

by ordinance because the term is for more than five years and the revenue is more than $30,000. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends approval of the renewal of the attached upland lease 

at Trident Basin to Redemption Inc. d/b/a Island Air Service as described in the attached drawing and 

lease documents for twenty-five years. 

CITY MANAGER'S COMMENTS: Island Air Service wishes to expand their lease of uplands and a 

fuel easement with the City at Trident Basin where they have been doing business since 2011.They have 

worked with staff and want to renew their lease agreement for twenty-five years. I support staffs 

recommendation. Island Air Service has been a good tenant, and I believe the terms of this agreement 

continue to benefit both the City and Island Air Service. 

ATTACHMENTS: 

Attachment A: Ordinance No. 1392 

Attachment B: Lease Agreement and location of current leased area site map 

Attachment C: Application for lease and letter of request 

PROPOSED MOTION: 

Move to adopt Ordinance No. 1392. 

FEBRUARY 13, 2020 
Agenda Item IV .a Memo Page 2 of 2 

8



CITY OF KODIAK 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 1392 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KODIAK AUTHORIZ-

ING A 25-YEAR LEASE OF CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY IN TRIDENT BASIN TO 

REDEMPTION, INC. D/B/A ISLAND AIR SERVICE 

WHEREAS, Redemption, Inc. d/b/a Island Air has applied for a 25-year lease of certain real 

property in Trident Basin; and 

WHEREAS, Redemption desires the lease in connection with its merger of operations with An-

drew Airways, Inc., and 

WHEREAS, Redemption, Inc. is the current occupant of part of the desired premises; and 

WHEREAS, Andrew Airways, Inc, is the current occupant of the remainder of the desired prem-

ises; and 

WHEREAS, the Council finds that issuing the lease will facilitate economic development through 

improved air service; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of Kodiak, Alaska, as 

follows: 

Section 1: Approval of Lease. Pursuant to Kodiak City Code 18.20.110(b), lease of the property at 

market value in accordance with the terms of Lease Agreement No. 247776 is approved. 

Section 2: Approval of Term Extension and Assignment. Pursuant to Kodiak City Code 

18.20.240 and 18.20.340, assignment from Andrew Airways, Inc. to Redemption, Inc. of 

that certain Lease Agreement between the City of Kodiak and Andrew Airways Inc. dat-

ed December 1, 2007 (authorized by Ord. No. 1229) is hereby authorized and upon such 

assignment, extension of the term of that lease through June 30, 2045 is also authorized. 

Section 3: Authorization. The form and content of the lease agreement between the City and 

Redemption Inc. d/b/a Island Air Service, hereby are in all respects authorized, approved, 

and confirmed; and the City Manager hereby is authorized, empowered, and directed to 

execute and deliver the lease agreement to Redemption, Inc., d/b/a Island Air Services, 

on behalf of the City, in substantially the form and content now before this meeting but 

with such changes, modifications, additions, and deletions therein as he shall deem nec-

essary, desirable, or appropriate, the execution thereof to constitute conclusive evidence 

of approval of any and all changes, modifications, additions, or deletions therein from the 

form and content of said document now before this meeting, and from and after the exe-

cution and delivery of said document, the City Manager hereby is authorized, empow-

ered, and directed to do all acts and things and to execute all documents as may be 

necessary to carry out and comply with the provisions of the lease agreement as executed. 

Section 4: Effective Date. As provided in Section V-17 of the Charter of the City of Kodiak, 

if one or more referendum petitions with signatures are properly filed within one 

month after the passage and publication of this ordinance, this ordinance shall not 

go into effect until the petition or petitions are finally found to be illegal and/or 

insufficient, or, if any such petition is found legal and sufficient, until the ordi-

Attachment A

9



nance is approved at an election by a majority of the qualified voters voting on the 

question. If no referendum petition with signatures is filed, this ordinance shall go 

into effect one month after its passage and publication 

CITY OF KODIAK 

MAYOR 

ATTEST: 

CITY CLERK 

First Reading: January 23, 2020 

Second Reading:  

Effective Date:  

10



LEASE AGREEMENT NO. 247776 

REDEMPTION, INC 

THIS LEASE AGREEMENT by and between the CITY OF KODIAK, an Alaska 

municipal corporation (“Lessor”), whose address is 710 Mill Bay Road, Kodiak, Alaska 99615, 

and REDEMPTION, INC. d/b/a Island Air Service (“Lessee”), whose address is 1420 Airport 

Way, Kodiak, Alaska 99615, provides as follows:  

1. Premises. Upon the terms and conditions herein set forth and subject to the prompt

payment and performance by Lessee of each and every sum and other obligation hereinafter

referred to, the Lessor does hereby lease, let, and demise to the Lessee, and the Lessee does

hereby lease from the Lessor that certain property located within the Kodiak Recording District,

State of Alaska:

A. Located within Tract F, U.S. Survey 2261 & U.S. Survey 4947, per plat 2008-17, Kodiak

Recording District, Kodiak, Alaska.

Commencing at Corps of Engineers Monument “TDB-121 Reset,” a 2” aluminum cap

monument found, from which Corps of Engineers Monument “TDB-119” Bears S 24°02’ 19” W

1,046.71 feet.  This being the Basis of Bearing for this description.

Thence S 24° 59’ 08” W, 543.05 feet to the True Point of Beginning; 

Thence S 32° 35’ 42” W, 34.00 feet; 

Thence S 57° 24’ 18” E, 13.33 feet; 

Thence N 32° 35’ 42” E, 26.82 feet; 

Thence N 52° 57’ 50” E, 15.55 feet; 

Thence S 61° 25’ 43” E, 60.25 feet; 

Thence N 28° 34’ 17” E, 2.00 feet; 

Thence N 61° 25’ 43” W, 62.54 feet; 

Thence N 28° 34’ 17 E”, 5.05 feet: 

Thence S 52° 57’ 50” W, 15.22 feet 

Thence N 57° 24’ 18” W, 10.66 feet to the true point of beginning. 

Containing approximately 638 sq. feet. 

B. Located within Tract F, U.S. Survey 2261 & U.S. Survey 4947, per plat 2008-17, Kodiak

Recording District, Kodiak, Alaska.

Commencing at Corps of Engineers Monument “TDB-121 Reset,” a 2” aluminum cap

monument found, from which Corps of Engineers Monument “TDB-119” Bears S 24° 02’ 19”

W 1,046.71 feet.  This being the Basis of Bearing for this description.

Thence S 25° 27’ 40” W, 426 feet to the true point of beginning; 

Thence S 26° 48’ 21” W, 78.00 feet; 

Thence S 63° 11’ 39” E, 35.00 feet; 

Thence N 26° 48’ 21” E, 78.00 feet: 

Thence N 63° 11’ 39” W, 35.00 feet to the true point of beginning. 

Containing approximately 2,730 sq. feet. 

Attachment B

11



C. Located within Tract F, U.S. Survey 2261 & U.S. Survey 4947, per plat 2008-17, Kodiak

Recording District, Kodiak, Alaska.

Commencing at Corps of Engineers Monument “TDB-121 Reset,” a 2” aluminum cap

monument found, from which Corps of Engineers Monument “TDB-119” Bears S 24° 02’ 19”

W 1,046.71 feet.  This being the Basis of Bearing for this description.

Thence S 26° 48’ 22” W, 353.33 feet to the true point of beginning; 

Thence S 26° 48’21” W, 72.55 feet; 

Thence S 63° 11’ 39” E, 35.00 feet; 

Thence N 26° 48’ 21” E, 72.55 feet; 

Thence N 63° 11’ 39” W, 35.00 feet to the true point of beginning. 

Containing approximately 2,539 sq. feet. 

D. Located within Tract F, U.S. Survey 2261 & U.S. Survey 4947, per plat 2008-17, Kodiak

Recording District, Kodiak, Alaska.

Commencing at Corps of Engineers Monument “TDB-121 Reset,” a 2” aluminum cap

monument found, from which Corps of Engineers Monument “TDB-119” Bears S 24° 02’ 19”

W 1,046.71 feet.  This being the Basis of Bearing for this description.

Thence S 23° 38’ 03” W, 319.28 feet to the true point of beginning;

Thence S 25° 27’ 08” W, 10.00 feet; 

Thence S 64° 32’ 52” E, 10.00 feet; 

Thence N 25° 27’ 08” E, 10.00 feet; 

Thence N 64° 32’ 52” W, 10.00 feet to the true point of beginning. 

Containing approximately 100 sq. feet. 

E. Collectively, these leased premises are hereinafter referred to as the “Site” and are subject

to easements, covenants, and restrictions of record.

2. Term. This Lease shall continue in effect for a period of 25 years, from February 1,

2020, through June 30, 2045, unless earlier terminated in accordance with the terms of this

Lease.

3. Rent.

A. Monthly Rent. On the first day of each month, Lessee shall pay, as rent, an

amount equal to 1/12 of the Annual Rent amount then in effect. 

B. Initial Annual Rent and Adjustment. The Site was appraised to have an Annual

Rent of $23,700. This amount shall be the Annual Rent from February 1, 2020 through 

June 30, 2020. The Annual Rent shall increase by 2% on July 1, 2020 and by an 

additional 2% over the previous year’s Annual Rent on each subsequent July 1; provided, 

however, that the City Council may adjust the Annual Rent every five years in 

accordance with Kodiak City Code 18.20.220. 

C. Late Payment. If a monthly installment is not paid by the fifth of the month in

which it becomes due, a penalty of $30 will be added to the rental amount, and, in 

12



addition, simple interest shall accrue and be added to the rental amount at the rate of 12% 

per annum from the due date until paid. 

D. Holdover Rent. Should Lessee not vacate the Site at the end of the term, the

monthly rent during any holdover tenancy shall be equal to 150% of monthly rent amount 

for the last month of the original term of the lease. 

4. Use of Site. The Site shall be used solely as an aviation facility in accordance with

Lessee’s application for this Lease and Kodiak City Code 18.20.210. Lessee’s occupancy and

use shall further be subject to any tariff adopted by the City of Kodiak City Council regulating

the use of the Trident Basin Seaplane Base.

5. Availability of Service. Lessee shall operate its aviation facility at the Site as a first-class

business of high quality and public service.

6. Parties Interested Herein. Nothing in this Lease, express or implied, is intended or shall

be construed to give to any person, other than Lessor, any right, remedy or claim under or by

reason of this Lease.

7. Improvements. Lessor shall have the right to make additions, alterations, or

improvements to the Site which will not impede Lessee’s access to or use of the Site. Lessee

shall have the right to erect or construct a suitable building and/or associated structure(s)

necessary for its aviation facility. Any improvements constructed by Lessee shall be consistent

with the limited use of the Site authorized by this Lease and shall be constructed at Lessee’s

expense. Upon termination of this Lease, such improvements shall become the property of

Lessor or, at Lessee’s option, removed by Lessee at its sole expense.

8. Maintenance. Except as otherwise specifically provided herein, the Lessee shall, at all

times and at its sole expense, keep and maintain the Site in good repair, and in neat, orderly, and

sightly condition. Lessee shall not cause or permit any litter, debris, or refuse to be accumulated

or stored upon the Site and shall promptly remove all such materials without cost to Lessor.

9. Insurance/Indemnification. The Lessee shall not commence with use of the Site until

the Lessee has obtained the insurance required under this Lease. All coverage shall be with

insurance carriers licensed and admitted to do business in the State of Alaska. All coverage shall

be with carriers acceptable to Lessor. The required lines and limits of insurance are as follows:

A. General Liability Insurance. The Lessee shall procure and maintain during the

life of this agreement, general liability insurance on an “occurrence basis” with limits of 

liability not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence, personal injury, bodily injury and 

property damage. The minimum aggregate limit shall be $2,000,000. 

B. Motor Vehicle Liability Insurance. The Lessee shall procure and maintain

during the life of this agreement, motor vehicle liability insurance, including all 

applicable no fault coverages, with limits of liability of not less than $1,000,000 per 

occurrence combined single limit.  

13



C. Workers Compensation Insurance. The Lessee shall procure and maintain

during the life of this agreement, workers compensation insurance, including employer’s 

liability coverage, in accordance with all applicable statutes of the State of Alaska.  

D. Pollution Liability Insurance. The Lessee shall procure and maintain during

the life of this agreement, pollution liability insurance, on an “occurrence basis” with 

limits of liability not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence.  

E. Umbrella Liability Insurance. The Lessee shall procure and maintain during

the life of this agreement umbrella liability insurance, not less than $5,000,000 combined 

single limit per occurrence and aggregate for bodily injury and property damage claims 

arising from all operations related to this contract. 

F. Additional Insured & Waiver of Subrogation. Except for Worker’s

Compensation Insurance, all insurance policies shall include an endorsement stating the 

following shall be Additional Insured and waiving any claim for subrogation: The City of 

Kodiak, its elected and appointed officials, all employees and volunteers, all boards, 

commissions and/or authorities and board members, including employees and volunteers 

thereof. This coverage shall be primary to the Additional Insured, and not contributing 

with any other insurance or similar protection available to the Additional Insured, 

whether the other available coverage be primary, contributing or excess. 

G. Cancellation Notice. All insurance policies, as described above, shall include

an endorsement stating the following: “Sixty (60) days advance written notice of 

cancellation, non- renewal, reduction and/or material change shall be sent to: City of 

Kodiak. 

10. Environmental.

A. For purposes of this section:

(i) “Environmental Requirement” shall mean any law, regulation, or legal

requirement relating to health, safety or the environment, now in effect or hereinafter 

enacted, including without limitation the Comprehensive Environmental Response 

Compensation and Liability Act (CERCLA), the Toxic Substances Control Act (TSCA), 

the Federal Insecticide Fungicide and Rodenticide Act (FIFRA), the Resource 

Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA), the Clean Air Act (CAA) and the Clean Water 

Act (CWA), the Occupational Safety and Health Act (OSHA) and all similar state and 

local laws, rules, regulations, and guidance, now in existence or hereinafter enacted, as 

each such law, rule, or regulation may be amended from time to time.  

(ii) “Environmental Hazard” shall mean Hazardous Materials (as defined

hereinafter), or the storage, handling, production, disposal, treatment, or release thereof. 

(iii) “Hazardous Material” shall mean

(a) any hazardous waste, any extremely hazardous waste, or any

restricted hazardous waste, or words of similar import, as defined in the Resource 

Conservation and Recovery Act (42 USC §6901 et seq.), 

14



(b) any hazardous substances as defined in the Comprehensive

Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act (42 USC §9601 et seq.), 

(c) any toxic substances as defined in the Toxic Substances Control

Act (15 USC §2601 et seq.), 

(d) any pollutant as defined in the Clean Water Act (33 USC

§1251 et seq.),

(e) gasoline, petroleum, or other hydrocarbon products or by-

products, 

(f) asbestos, and

(g) any other materials, substances, or wastes subject to

environmental regulation under any applicable federal, state, or local law, regulation, or 

ordinance now or hereafter in effect. 

(iv) “Environmental Liabilities” shall mean any liability, penalties, fines,

forfeitures, demands, damages, losses, claims, causes of action, suits, judgments, and 

costs and expenses incidental thereto (including cost of defense, settlement, reasonable 

attorneys fees, reasonable consultant fees, and reasonable expert fees), arising from or 

based on (I) environmental contamination or the threat of environmental contamination 

or (II) noncompliance, or violation of, any Environmental Requirement and shall include 

without limitation liability arising from  

(a) any governmental action, order, directive, administrative

proceeding, or ruling 

(b) personal or bodily injuries (including death) or damages to any

property (including loss of use) or natural resources 

(c) clean-up, remediation, investigation, monitoring, or other

response action. 

(v) “Environmental Release” shall mean any release, spill, leak,

discharge, injection, disposal, or emission of any Hazardous materials into the 

environment. 

B. At all times during the term of the Lease, Lessee shall conduct its activities at

the Site, and shall ensure that any invitee of Lessee conducts its activities at the Site in 

strict compliance with all applicable Environmental Requirements.  

C. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Lease, Lessee agrees to indemnify

and hold harmless Lessor, Lessor’s successors and assigns, and Lessor’s present and 

future officers, directors, employees, and agents, (collectively “Lessor Indemnitees”) 

from and against any and all Environmental Liabilities which Lessor or any or all of the 

Lessor lndemnitees may hereafter suffer, incur, be responsible for, or disburse as a result 

of any Environmental Hazard at the Site to the extent caused by or attributable to Lessee 

or Lessee’s activities, including any Environmental Hazard at the Site to the extent 

caused by or attributable to any invitee of Lessee or by the activities of any invitee of 

Lessee.  

15



D. The provisions of this section shall survive termination of this Lease.

11. Utility Charges and Taxes. All utility charges shall be borne and paid for by Lessee,

together with all personal or real property taxes or assessments that may be levied against the

Lessee by reasons of its occupancy of the Site or its rights hereunder.

12. Operation of Equipment. In installing, operating, or maintaining any equipment on the

Site and in its general management of the Site, the Lessee will act in accordance with applicable

laws and regulations and will not do, attempt, or permit any acts in connection with this Lease

which could be construed as a violation of law.

13. Condition of Site. The Lessee takes the Site in its present condition and the Lessor shall

have no responsibility for its condition, or for any damage suffered by the Lessee or any other

person due to such conditions.

14. Assignment and Subleasing. Lessee may not sublease the Site, either in whole or in any

portion, without first obtaining the approval of the City Council in writing. Lessee may not

assign, mortgage, pledge, or otherwise encumber all or any portion of this Lease or the Site

without first obtaining the approval of the City Council. Any assignment, pledge, or

encumbrance approved by the Council shall be subject to all terms and provisions of this Lease.

Any assignment, pledge, or encumbrance executed without the proper approval of the Council

shall be void and of no force and effect. The City Council shall have no obligation to provide its

written approval and may withhold it for any reason or none at all. Any request for any City

Council written approval required by this section shall be accompanied by a $500 fee, which

shall be used to offset the administrative costs of processing the request.

15. Default and Re-Entry. If Lessee fails to cure any default of the conditions of this Lease

within 30 days after written notice thereof by Lessor, or in the event insolvency proceedings

should be instituted by or against Lessee, then Lessor may terminate this Lease as of such date

and re-enter the Site and remove all property therefrom and Lessee shall remain liable for the

payment of rental to the extent provided by law.

16. Applicable Law. Lessee shall, at all times, in its use and occupancy of the Site and in the

conduct of its operations thereon, comply with all applicable federal, state, and local laws,

ordinances, and regulations. This Lease Agreement shall be subject to all provisions of Kodiak

City Code Chapter 18.20.

17. Effective Date. This Lease Agreement shall be effective only following the occurrence

of:

A. The effective date of the ordinance authorizing this Lease;

B. Execution by both parties, which may occur in counterparts;

C. Termination of that certain Lease Agreement between the City of Kodiak and Andrew

Airways, Inc. dated December 1, 2007 and for that real property described in Section 1. A. of this 

Lease; 

16



D. Termination of Andrew Airways, Inc. month-to month holdover tenancy for that real

property described in Sections 1.D. of this Lease; and 

E. Termination of Andrew Airways, Inc. easement over that real property described in

Sections 1.E. of this Lease. 

18. Limitation on Right to Possession. Part of the Site is currently occupied by Andrew

Airways, Inc., as a holdover tenant. Lessee has represented that it is merging with or acquiring

Andrew Airways, Inc. Lessee shall have sole responsibility of obtaining possession of that

portion of the Site from Andrew Airways, Inc.

IN WITNESS WHEROF, the parties executed this instrument the day and month written 

below. 

LESSOR: LESSEE: 

CITY OF KODIAK REDEMPTION, INC.  

d/b/a Island Air Service 

___________________________ ___________________________ 
Mike Tvenge  Adam Lutz 

City Manager  President 

ATTEST: _____________ 
Date 

___________________________ 
Nova Javier, MMC 

City Clerk 

_____________ 
Date 

17



1. THIS SURVEY DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A SUBDIVISION AS DEFINED BY A.S. 
40.15.900(5) 

2. THIS MAP WAS PREPARED TO PROVIDE A VISUAL ACCESSORY TO THE 
LEGAL DESCRIPTIONS PER LEASE No. 24776. 

3. THIS MAP IS INTENDED TO BE PRINTED ON LEGAL SIZE PAPER (8.5" X 14") 

TRIDENT BASIN LEASE TRACT LOCATION EXHIBIT 

LOCATED WITHIN TRACT F U.S. SURVEY 2261 & 4947, PLAT 

2008-17, KODIAK RECORDING DISTRICT 

KODIAK ALASKA 

PREPARED FOR: ISLAND AIR SERVICE P.O. Box 947, KODIAK, AK 99615 

DRAWN BY: TW DATE: 01/16/2020 

SCALE: 1"=40' REF NO. 200020106 

WILLMAN LAND SURVEYING P.O. BOX 8545 KODIAK, AK 991115 907.942.48fJ6 

18



@ City Clerk's Office 
710 Mill Bay Road, Rm 110 
Kodiak, AK 99615 
Phone: (907) 486-8636 
Fax: (907) 486-8600 (fax) 
Email: clerks@city.kodiak.ak.us 

APPLICATION FOR PURCHASE, LEASE, OR RENEW AL 

OF LEASE OF REAL PROPERTY 

□ PURCHASE
�LEASE
□ *RENEWAL

TERM REQUESTED: _25 __ YEARS 
TERM REQUESTED: YEARS 

•KCC 18.20.340, the lessee shall, not sooner than 60 calendar days prior to expiration, and not later than 30 calendar days prior to the expiration, make application 

for a renewal lease in writing on forms provided entitled "application for renewal of lease." 

1. DATE OF APPLICATION 

12/1812019 

2. APPLICANT NAME 

(IF CORPORATION OR PARTNERSHIP, SEE #10 BELOW) 

Redemption, Inc. OBA Island Air Service 
3. MAILING ADDRESS 

1420 Airport Way 
4. PHYSICAL ADDRESS 

1420 Airport Way 
5. CITY Kodiak 

7. ZIP 99615 

8. WORK PHONE: /907) 487-4596 

CELL PHONE: (706) 466-6973 OR (907) 942-4074 

10. IF CORPORATION OR PARTNERSHIP, ATTACH ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 

CORPORATION: Attach Schedule C, Showing Principal Agent and Contact Information 

PARTNERSHIP: Attach Schedule P, Listing Partners Names and Contact Information 

11. LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF THE REQUESTED PROPERTY 

U.S. SURVEY (USS) 

LOT BLOCK 

OR 

9. EMAIL: 

FAX:

6.STATE AK

Adam@fll£adg.com 

/907) 487-4693 

SUBDIVISION 

STREET ADDRESS OR OTHER IDENTIFYING DESCRIPTION: 

500 Trident Way, including Lot 2 and Fuel Tank Area as Illustrated in Attachment A, of Lease No. 217715, Lot 3 and Fuel 
Tank Area as illustrated in Attachment A, of Lease No. 216595. 

12. AREA, IN SQUARE FEET OF REQUESTED PROPERTY: 

5,822.2 square feet 

Revised: November 2019 

Attachment C

19



City of Kodiak 

Application for Purchase, Lease, or Renewal of Lease of Real Property, Page 2 

13. DESCRIPTION OF PURPOSE OF THE PROPOSED LEASE IN DETAIL (KCC 18.20.050 (b.1)). INCLUDE EXISTING IMPROVEMENTS, IF ANY, ON THE PROPERTY 

Aviation Services and Fuel Distribution Facility 

14. PROPOSED USAGE OF LAND (KCC 18.20.050 (b.2)) 

✓c"oMMERCIALD RESIDENTIAL □ INDUSTRIAL
15. TYPE OF CONSTRUCTION PLANNED (KCC 18.20.050 (b.3)) 

(e.g.: FILL, FRAME, POST & BEAM, etc) NIA 

16. DATE DEVELOPMENT IS PLANNED TO BEGIN, AFTER SALE (KCC 17. DATE DEVELOPMENT IS EXPECTED TO BE COMPLETED, AFTER SALE {KCC

18.20.050 (b.3)): NIA 18.20.050 (b.4)): NIA 

18. INVESTMENT, INCLUDING EQUIPMENT, PLANNED 
$ 20. DESCRIBE ANY EXPANSION PLANS BEYOND 

DURING DEVELOPMENT PERIOD (Optional) THE INITIAL DEVELOPMENT (Optional) 

19. ANTICIPATED TAXABLE VALUATION OF THE 
$ 

PROPERTY, AFTER DEVELOPMENT (Optional) 

22. 
23. 

Is the applicant at least 18 years old (KCC 18.20.040 a)? ..................................................................... .. 'YES ONO 

24. 
25. 

26. 

27. 

Are four copies of an accurate plan and elevations of the proposed improvements 
attached to this application? ...................................................................................................................... . 
Is the preliminary survey plat submitted with this application? .................................................................. . 
If required, can you post a performance bond amounting to 10% of the estimated 
taxable valuation? ...................................................................................................................................... . 
Does your intended use of the property comply with the zoning regulation

rr��;:-;:::;--:-�---comprehensive plan of the Kodiak Island Borough (KCC 18.20.020 (b.5)) 
{E Q M 

Do you agree to comply with all applicable City ordinances and regulatio 
· .. ··w .. 

ordinances and zonin re ulations, and all a licable state and federal la 

Notice to Applicant(s) 

DYES �o
DYES NO

DYES �o
✓vES ONO 

�ES ONO 

A. This application will not be considered unless it is
accompanied by a filing fee, as established by the City 
Council in the Schedule of Fees and Charges. The filing 
fee is not refundable and should be made payable to the 
City of Kodiak (KCC 18.20.050b and 18.20.340). 

C. If the oun proceed with the
proposed sale or lease of this property, staff will review 
the application and set the amount of deposit required 
from the applicant in accordance with KCC 18.20.060 for 
costs of survey, appraisals, advertising, etc. 

B. Unless specifically exempted by KCC 18.20.030,
18.20.195, 18.20.196 or other provisions of City Code, 
any sale or lease of City property shall be made by 
sealed bid or at public auction. The City Council may 
require specific development or use of property to be sold 
or leased. 

If the property is sold or leased to someone other than 
the depositor, the deposit will be refunded, unless the 
depositor fails to enter a bid equal to at least the 
minimum sale or. rental price as established in 
accordance with KCC 18.20.100 and the property is not 
sold, in which case the deposit shall be forfeited. 
D. Certificates of Insurance will be required to be
produced within 10 business days of a lease agreement 
award. 

I testify that I am a qualified applicant or bidder per KCC 18.20.040 and I am the authorized agent to execute the sale or 
lease documents. 

Name of Applicant Signal#.{=� 
,:;./1r�1 

D�te 

Revised November 2019 

- ............. ,1,L..,... 

[E· ...... . 

20



SCHEDULE C 

CORPORATION 
PRINCIPAL AGENT AND CONTACT INFORMATION 

This schedule is attached to the Application for Purchase or Lease of Real Property submitted to the City of 
Kodiak as follows: 

CORPORATION N.AME DATE SUBMITTED 

Redemption, Inc. OBA Island Air Service 12/18/2019 

C1. NAME OF PRINCIPAL AGENT AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE THE SALE OR LEASE DOCUMENTS 

Adam Lutz 

C2. TITLE 

President 

C3. MAILING ADDRESS 

1420 Airport Way 

C4. CITY Kodiak 

CS. STATE AK C6. ZIP 99615 

C7. TELEPHONE ca. FAX 

(706) 466-6973 (907) 487-4693

C9. NAME OF ALTERNATE CONTACT 

Erik Howard 

C10. TITLE 

Secretary 

C11. CITY Kodiak 

C12. STATE AK C13. ZIP 99615 

C14. TELEPHONE C15. FAX 

(907) 942-407 4 (907) 487-4693

Revised: November 2019 21



� 

Redemption, Inc. 

Island Air Service 

1420 Airport Way 

Kodiak, AK 99615 

November 26, 2019 

Mike Tvenge 

City Manager 

710 Mill Bay Road, Room 114 

Kodiak, AK 99615 

Dear Mike Tvenge, 

www.flyadq.com 

This letter is a formal request from Redemption Inc. dba Island Air Service to lease two lots located at 

Trident Basin from the City of Kodiak for a period of twenty-five years. Island Air Service is in the final 

stages of completing an SBA 504 Loan to purchase the building at 500 Trident Way. Island Air Service 

would like to lease the parcel located at 500 Trident Way along with the associated fuel facility parcel. 

Andrew Airways is currently leasing both lots from the City of Kodiak and agrees to allow Island Air 

Service to lease these two parcels. Island Air Service will begin merging operations with Andrew Airways 

on December 1, 2019, with an expected loan closing date in January 2020. We respectfully request to 

have a written lease ready for approval at the next city council meeting on December 12, 2019. If unable 

to complete a lease in that time, we would request a letter of intent to sign a 25-year lease, so we can 

continue moving forward with the SBA loan process. 

Island Air Service has been proudly serving the community of Kodiak for more than 40 years. Since new 

ownership in 2016, we have infused millions of dollars into assets and infrastructure to ensure 

sustainability in providing high quality, safe, and reliable air service to the community. Our marketing 

strategy includes a plan to increase our charter business by developing more ecotourism opportunities 

that bring clients to Kodiak. By working with other local businesses and increasing our marketing, we 

have already seen a 40% increase in bookings for next season. These clients bring money to the city by 

eating at local restaurants, staying in hotels, renting cars/taxis, and local shopping. 

Island Air Service looks forward to working with the City of Kodiak to promote aviation and enhance 

growth of the tourism market here in Kodiak. 

Sincerely, 

Island Air Service 

C? 

Signature Date 

1420 Airport Way, Kodiak, AK 99615 Phone: (907) 487-4596 Fax: (907) 487-4693 

Email: Erik@flyadq.com 

f 

22



NEW BUSINESS 



(This page left intentionally blank.) 



MEMORANDUM TO COUNCIL 

To: Mayor Branson and City Councilmembers 

From: Mike Tvenge, City Manager � 

Thru: Kelly Mayes, Finance Director 

Date: February 13, 2020 

Agenda Item: V. a. Resolution No. 2020-06, Adopting an Alternative Method for the
FY2020 Shared Fisheries Business Tax Program and Certifying That 
This Allocation Method Fairly Represents the Distribution of 
Significant Effects of Fisheries Business Activity in Fisheries 
Management Area 13: Kodiak Area 

SUMMARY: Resolution No. 2020-06 adopts an alternative allocation method and certifies the 
allocation method fairly represents the distribution of significant effects of Fisheries Business 
activity in Fishing Management Area (FMA) 13. This resolution adopts an alternative allocation 
from the long form, which was used in the past. The decision to use the short or alternative form 
is agreed upon by the Kodiak Island Borough, other Kodiak local governments, and the City 
each year by resolution. Staff recommends Council adopt Resolution No. 2020-06. 

PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTION: Each year, the City Council adopts a resolution to identify a 
method of payment of the shared fisheries taxes available to communities in the Kodiak Island 
area. Last year the Council adopted Resolution No. 2019-04 on January 24, 2019, identifying the 
alternative allocation as the preferred method for the shared fisheries business tax program. 

BACKGROUND: The State of Alaska Shared Fisheries Business Tax Program was created in 
1990 to help municipalities impacted by the effects of the rapidly expanding offshore fish 
processing industry. A previously existing fish tax sharing program ( commonly referred to as the 
Raw Fish Tax Program), administered by the Department of Revenue, shares back to 
municipalities half of the state fisheries business tax collected from fish processors operating 
inside municipal boundaries. The Department's program extends tax sharing to include a sharing 
of fish taxes collected outside of municipal boundaries, primarily from floating processors. 

There are two application methods available to the municipalities in each Fisheries Management 
Area: 

1. Under the Standard Method, each municipality in the FMA must determine and document
the cost of fisheries business impacts experienced by the community in the previous
calendar year. These impacts are submitted by each municipality in their applications. The
department reviews the applications and determines if the impacts submitted are valid.

FEBRUARY 13, 2020 
Agenda Item V. a. Memo Page 1 of 3 

23



Once the impacts have been established for each of the municipalities in the FMA, the 

department calculates the allocation for each municipality using the following formula: 

One half of the funding available within a FMA is divided up among participating 

municipalities on the basis of the relative dollar amount of impact in each municipality. The 

other half of the funding available to that area is divided equally among all eligible 

municipalities. 

2. Under the Alternative Method, municipalities within the FMA agree on a distribution

formula. The department only approves the use of a proposed alternative method if all the

municipalities in the area agree to use the method, and if the method includes some measure

of the relative effects of the fishing industry on the respective municipalities in the area.

The proposed alternative method divides half of the funding available equally among all 

eligible municipalities. The other half would be divided within the area and is based on 

population. 

Due to the time and expense involved in determining and documenting the standard method, all 

of the FMAs have used the Alternative Method to determine the allocation of the Shared 

Fisheries Business Tax for the past several years. The Kodiak Management Area, FMA13, was 

the only FMA in Alaska that used the long form to distribute the Shared Fisheries Truces to the 

communities up until FY2014. 

DISCUSSION: The municipalities located in this region's FMA include Akhiok, Kodiak, 

Kodiak Island Borough, Larsen Bay, Old Harbor, Ouzinkie, and Port Lions. The total FY2020 

program allocation to be shared within FMA13 is estimated to be $426,267.13 compared to the 

$254,478.73 in FY2019. Kodiak's share for FY2020 is estimated to be $126,857.49. 

(Attachment B). The program requires that funding be first allocated to fisheries management 

areas around the state based on the level of fish processing in each area compared to the total fish 

processing for the whole state. Then the funding is further allocated among the municipalities 

located within each fisheries management area based on the relative level of impacts experienced 

by each municipality. 

Based on capital expenditures made by the other municipalities in FMA13, it appears unlikely 

that the City of Kodiak would receive a larger allocation for FY2020 by using the standard 

method. The alternative allocation method allocates 50 percent shared equally among the 

municipalities located within the FMA 13 region. The remaining 50 percent is shared among the 

municipalities on a per capita basis. The City has opted, along with the other communities on 

Kodiak and the Borough, to use the alternative method (short form) since FY2015. Using the 

FEBRUARY 13, 2020 
Agenda Item V. a. Memo Page 2 of 3 

24



alternative method this year does not preclude the City from using the standard method in future 

years. 

Based on the cost and time needed to prepare the standard form, staff believes the alternative 

method will provide the available funds more easily to offset some of the impacts from fisheries

related activities in the community. 

ALTERNATIVES: 

1) Adopt Resolution No. 2020-06, which is the staff recommendation, because it provides

the City with funding to offset impacts to fisheries business conducted in Kodiak.

2) Council could require the City to complete the standard method application. 1bis is not

recommended because it is inconsistent with the agreed upon method currently used by

local governments in the Kodiak Island Borough.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: By adopting the resolution and completing the application, 

the City will receive funding from the Department of Commerce, Community and Economic 

Development. In FY2019, the City received $75,174.77 and expects to receive $126,857.49 for 

the FY2020. This funding is recorded in the general fund. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends Council adopt Resolution No. 2020-06 in 

order for the City to receive funding using the alternative method. 

CITY MANAGER'S COMMENTS: The City has received funds through the State of Alaska 

Shared Fisheries Business Tax Program since its inception, and Council approves the application 

process for the funds by resolution each year. Receipt of the shared fisheries tax helps to offset 

expenses that result from impacts to the City's facilities, operations, and services created by 

fisheries activities. The department only approves the use of a proposed alternative method if all 

the municipalities/ communities in the area agree to use the method, and if the method includes 

some measure of the relative effects of the fishing industry on the respective municipalities in the 

area. Kodiak communities are using the alternative allocation method. I support staffs 

recommendation to adopt Resolution No. 2020-06. 

ATTACHMENTS: 

Attachment A: Resolution No. 2020-06 

Attachment B: DCCED FY2020 Shared Fisheries application letter 

PROPOSED MOTION: 

Move to adopt Resolution No. 2020-06. 

FEBRUARY 13, 2020 
Agenda Item V. a. Memo Page 3 of3 

25



CITY OF KODIAK 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 2020-06 

A RESOLUTION ADOPTING AN ALTERNATIVE ALLOCATION METHOD 

FOR THE FY2020 SHARED FISHERIES BUSINESS TAX PROGRAM AND 

CERTIFYING THAT THIS ALLOCATION METHOD FAIRLY REPRESENTS THE 

DISTRIBUTION OF SIGNIFICANT EFFECTS OF FISHERIES BUSINESS ACTIVITY 

IN FMA 13: KODIAK AREA 

WHEREAS, AS 29.60.450 requires that for a municipality to participate in the FY2020 

Shared Fisheries Business Tax Program, the municipality must demonstrate to the Department of 

Commerce, Community, and Economic Development that the municipality suffered significant 

effects during calendar year 2018 from fisheries business activities; and, 

WHEREAS, 3 AAC 134.060 provides for the allocation of available program funding to 

eligible municipalities located within fisheries management areas specified by the Department of 

Commerce, Community, and Economic Development; and, 

WHEREAS, 3 AAC 134.070 provides for the use, at the discretion of the Department of 

Commerce, Community, and Economic Development, of alternative allocation methods which 

may be used within fisheries management areas if all eligible municipalities within the area agree 

to use the method, and the method incorporates some measure ofthe relative significant effect of 

fisheries business activity on the respective municipalities in the area; and, 

WHEREAS, The Council of the City of Kodiak proposes to use an alternative allocation 

method for allocation of FY2020 funding available within the FMA 13: Kodiak Area in 

agreement with all other municipalities in this area participating in the FY 2020 Shared Fisheries 

Business Tax Program; 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT: The Council of the City of Kodiak by this 

resolution certifies that the following alternative allocation method fairly represents the distribu-

tion of significant effects during 2018 of fisheries business activity in FMA 13: Kodiak Area: 

 All municipalities share equally 50%  of allocation; all municipalities  share remaining

50% on a per capita basis.

 Kodiak Borough population is reduced by the population of the Cities of Akhiok, Kodiak,

Larsen Bay, Old Harbor, Ouzinkie & Port Lions.

Attachment A

26



CITY OF KODIAK 

___________________________________ 

MAYOR 

ATTEST: 

_________________________________ 

CLERK 

Adopted: 

27



THE STATE 

November 15,2019

City of Kodiak 
710 Mill Bay Road 
Kodiak AK, 99615

01ALASKA 
GOVERNOR MICHAEL T- DUNLE..-\YY 

Dear Municipal Official:

Department of Commerce, Community, 
and Economic Development 

DIY1S10N OF COMMUNITY AND REGIONAL AFFAIRS 

f 

NOV 2019 
Received

<.:cut,ve 009°, 
c;; 

455 Third Avenue. Suite 140 
Fairbanks. AK 99701-3110 

Main: 907.451.2718 
Programs fox: 907.451.2742 

The Department of Commerce, Community, and Economic Development is pleased to announce availability of the
FY 2020 Shared Fisheries Business Tax Program. The purpose of the program is to allocate a share of state fish
tax collected outside municipal boundaries with municipalities affected by fishing industry activities. Municipalities
around the state will share approximately $1.6 million based on 2018 fisheries activity as reported by fish processors
on their fish tax returns. Details of how the program works are included in the application under Program Description.

Historically, your municipalio/ along with the other communities in your fisheries management area (FMA
13: Kodiak Island) has filed using the Alternative Method found on th� last four pages of this application. A
breakc).own is included that details the communities in your FMA, in addition to the anticipated payment based on
the agreed upon allocation method for your FMA. If this agreement is still in place with your FMA, you "vill only need
to have your Council/ Assembly pass the enclosed alternative method sample resolution in order to participate in the
program.

If your FMA intends to change the alternative method of allocation, the new proposal must be submitted to our office
no later than January 15, 2020. If an agreement cannot be made with all communities in your FMA, you will need
to file using the standard method and claim your significant effects. Instructions on both of these methods are detailed
in the application packet.

DEADLINE FOR SUBMISSION OF COMPLETED APPLICATION IS 
FEBRUARY 18, 2020. 

Applications can be scanned and emailed to caa@alaska.gov with the subject line "Municipality Name, FY20,
SFBT" If you have any questions about the program or require assistance in completing the application, please
contact me at kimberly.phillips@alaska.gov or call (907) 451-2718.

Sincerely,

�/)1 � 
I�hillips 
Grants Administrator II

Enclosures

Attachment B

28



To
ta

l a
llo

ca
tio

n:
 

50
%

 D
iv

id
ed

 E
qu

al
ly

 
50

%
 p

er
 C

ap
ita

 
$7

8,
22

7.
05

 
$3

9,
11

3.
52

 
$3

9,
11

3.
52

 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 
P

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 

50
%

 d
iv

id
ed

 s
ha

re
 

50
%

 p
er

 C
ap

ita
 

Ci
ty

 o
f A

kh
io

k 
81

 
$5

,5
87

.6
5 

$2
41

.1
8 

Ci
ty

 o
f K

od
ia

k 
5,

94
2 

$5
,5

87
.6

5 
$1

7,
69

2.
80

 
Ko

di
ak

 Is
la

nd
 B

or
ou

gh
 

6,
51

3 
$5

,5
87

.6
5 

$1
9,

39
3.

00
 

Ci
ty

 o
f L

ar
se

n 
Ba

y 
80

 
$5

,5
87

.6
5 

$2
38

.2
1 

Ci
ty

 o
f O

ld
 H

ar
bo

r 
22

4 
$5

,5
87

.6
5 

$6
66

.9
8 

Ci
ty

 o
f O

uz
in

ki
e 

15
4 

$5
,5

87
.6

5 
$4

58
.5

5 
Ci

ty
 o

f P
or

t L
io

ns
 

14
2 

$5
,5

87
.6

5 
$4

22
.8

2 
T

o
ta

ls
 

1
3
,1

3
6
 

$
3

9
,1

1
3

.5
2
 

$
3

9
,1

1
3

.5
2
 

Co
m

m
un

ity
 C

ou
nt

 
7 

* 
50

%
 D

iv
id

ed
 E

qu
al

ly
 an

d 
50

%
 o

n 
a 

Pe
r C

ap
ita

 B
as

is.
**

 K
od

ia
k 

Isl
an

d 
Bo

ro
ug

h 
po

pu
la

tio
n=

 p
op

ul
at

io
n 

(1
3,

13
6)

 le
ss

 p
op

. o
f c

iti
es

LO
NG

 

C
a

lc
u

la
te

d
 

A
ll

o
c

a
ti

o
n

 

$5
,8

28
.8

3, 
$2

3,
28

0.
44

 
$2

4,
98

0.
64

 
$5

,8
25

.8
5 

$6
,2

54
.6

2 
$6

,0
46

.1
9 

$6
,0

10
.4

6 
$
7
8
,2

2
7
.0

5
 

FY
 1

8 
La

nd
in

g 
Ta

x 
Al

lo
ca

tio
n 

I 
Re

fe
re

nc
e 

$3
48

,0
40

.0
8 

N
um

be
r 

C
a

lc
u

la
te

d
 

A
ll

o
c

a
ti

o
n

 

$2
5,

93
3.

06
 

20
-S

F1
3-

01
 

$1
03

,5
77

.0
5 

20
-S

F1
3-

02
 

$1
11

,1
41

.4
1 

20
-S

F1
3-

03
 

$2
5,

91
9.

81
 

20
-S

F1
3-

04
 

$2
7,

82
7.

46
 

20
-S

F1
3-

05
 

$2
6,

90
0.

13
 

20
-S

F1
3-

06
 

$2
6,

74
1.

16
 

20
-S

F1
3-

07
 

$
3
4
8
,0

4
0
.0

8
 

T
o

ta
l 

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

 

$ 
31

,7
61

.8
9 

$ 
12

6,
85

7.
49

 
$ 

13
6,

12
2.

05
 

$ 
31

,7
45

.6
6 

$ 
34

,0
82

.0
9 

$ 
32

,9
46

.3
3 

$ 
32

,7
51

.6
2 

$
 

4
2
6
,2

6
7
.1

3
 

F
M

A
 1

3:
 K

o
d

ia
k 

A
re

a 

29



FY 20 Shared Fisheries Business Tax Program 
Application Instructions 

ALTERNATIVE METHOD 

• In the alternative method application process all municipalities in a fisheries management

area may work together to develop an alternative allocation formula for distributing the

available program funding among municipalities in the area. It is advised that the Department

of Commerce be consulted during this process if the municipalities have questions or
concerns about what constitutes an acceptable alternative to the standard allocation method.

• All the municipalities in an area must reach an agreement in writing on an alternative

allocation formula.

• By January 15, the department must receive the proposed alternative method. If the

alternative method is not acceptable, the department will work with the municipalities to

resolve the problems.

• If the municipalities in an area fail to satisfy the department regarding the acceptability of

the alternative allocation method proposed, then each municipality in the region must return

to the standard application process and submit separate applications as required by that

process.

• If the department finds the alternative allocation method satisfactory, each municipality must

then complete an alternative method applic�tion consisting of a cover page and resolution.

The resolution must be adopted by the governing body and it must clearly describe the

approved alternative allocation method within that area. After all alternative method

applications within an area have been received and approved; the department will perform

the allocations and distribute program funds.

30



Instructions for 

Alternative Method Application 

In the alternative method application, an approved resolution constitutes the application. No other forms 

need to be submitted. A sample resolution has been attached for your use. 

General Guidelines for Developing an Alternative Allocation Method 

All municipalities in a fisheries management area must agree on the alternative method: There 

must be unanimous agreement among all eligible municipalities in a fisheries management area with 

regard to alternative allocation methods. It is the responsibility of community leaders in the area to work 
together to negotiate an alternative which is acceptable to all municipalities. The department may be 

consulted at any time regarding what kinds of formula approaches are considered acceptable by the 
department. 

Alternative methods must incorporate some measure of the relative significant effects experienced 
by the respective municipalities in the area. The measure of significant effects may take many forms. 
One area might agree to use the number of commercial fishing boat visits-per-year per community as a 

measure of significant effects. Another area might use the linear foot-length of public docks as a measure. 
Another area might use community population figures as an indication of the significant effects of 
fisheries business activity. Another area might share one half of the funding equally between the· 
respective municipalities and share the other half based upon community population figures. Areas may 

decide to use one measure, or may use a combination of measures. 

Submit your completed application 
no later than 

February 18, 2020 to: 

E-mail
caa@alaska.gov 

Subject Line 
"Municipality Name, FY20, SFBT" 

Or 

Mail 
State of Alaska DCCED 

Shared Fisheries Business Tax Program 
455 3rd A venue, Suite 140 

Fairbanks, Alaska 99701-4737 

If you require assistance in completing this application, contact 
Kimberly Phillips at 451-2718. 

31



FY 20 SHARED FISHERIES BUSINESS TAX PROGRAM 

ALTERNATE METHOD APPLICATION For 

FMA 13: KODIAK AREA 

Name of Municipality�: __ l ________________ _ 

Address:-----=l=-----------------------

n 

n 

Contact Person: 
---------------------

Phone Number: l 
-=---------------------

Return cover page, and resolution 

E-mail
caa@alaska.gov 

Subject Line 
"Municipality Name, FY20, SFBT" 

Or 

Mail 
State of Alaska DCCED 

Shared Fisheries Business Tax Program 
455 3rd A venue, Suite 140 

Fairbanks, Alaska 99701-4737 

• • n 
n 

■ 

• 

32



FY 20 Shared Fisheries Business Tax Program 
Alternative Method Resolution 

(City or Borough) 

RESOLUTION NO. __ _ 

A RESOLUTION ADOPTING AN ALTERNATIVE ALLOCATION METHOD FOR THE FY20 
SHARED FISHERIES BUSINESS TAX PROGRAM AND CERTIFYING THAT THIS 

ALLOCATION METHOD FAIRLY REPRESENTS THE DISTRIBUTION OF SIGNIFICANT 
EFFECTS OF FISHERIES BUSINESS ACTIVITY IN FMA 13: KODIAK AREA 

WHEREAS, AS 29.60.450 requires that for a municipality to participate in the FY 20 Shared Fisheries Business 
Tax Program, the municipality must demonstrate to the Department of Commerce, Community, and Economic 
Development that the municipality suffered significant effects during calendar year 2018 from fisheries business 
activities; and, 

WHEREAS, 3 AAC 134.060 provides for the allocation of available program funding to eligible municipalities 
located within fisheries management areas specified by the Department of Commerce, Community, and Economic 
Development; and, 

WHEREAS, 3 AAC 134.070 provides for the use, at the discretion of the Department of Commerce, Community, 
and Economic Development, of alternative allocation methods which may be used within fisheries management 
areas if all eligible municipalities within the area agree to use the method, and the method incorporates some 
measure ofthe relative significant effect of fisheries business activity on the respective municipalities in the area; 
and, 

WHEREAS, The ______________ proposes to use an alternative allocation method for 
(Governing Body) 

allocation of FY20 funding available within the FMA 13: Kodiak Area in agreement with all other municipalities 
in this area participating in the FY20 Shared Fisheries Business Tax Program; 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT: The ___________ by this resolution 
(Governing Body) 

certifies that the following alternative allocation method fairly represents the distribution of significant effects 
during 2018 of fisheries business activity in FMA 13: Kodiak Area: 

• All municipalities share e ually 50% of allocation; all municipalities share remaining 50% on a

per ca ita basis.

• Kodiak Borough population is reduced by the poe_ulation of the Cities of Akhiok, Kodiak, Larsen

Bay, Old Harbor, Ouzinkie & Port Lions

PASSED and APPROVED by a duty constituted quorum of the ________ this __ day 
(Governing Body) 

of ____ 20_. 

SIGNED __________ _ 
Mayor 

ATTEST ________ _ 
Clerk 

-

q 

--· 
33



(This page left intentionally blank.) 



To: 

From: 

Date: 

Agenda Item: 

MEMORANDUM TO COUNCIL 

Mayor Branson and City Councilmembers ,,, 
Mike Tvenge, City M�r and Nova M. Javier, City Clerk fLd_-
February 13, 2020 (J 
V. b. Resolution No. 2020-07, Appointing a Member to the Kodiak Fisheries

Development Association 

SUMMARY: The City designated board seats on the Kodiak Fisheries Development Association 
(KFDA) are both vacant and the City Crab Processor Representative seat with a term to expire July 2022 
has been vacant for a while. Mr. John Whiddon submitted his application and staff recommends the 
Council approve his appointment to the board by adopting this resolution. 

PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTION: The City Council makes appointments to the KFDA board by 
resolution. 

• August 22, 2009, adopted Resolution No. 2009-22, appointing Linda Freed to a vacant joint
City-Borough seat

• September 24, 2009, adopted Resolution No. 2009-26, appointing Albert Tyler Schmeil to a
vacant joint City-Borough seat

• August 26, 2010, adopted Resolution No. 2010-25, reappointing Mike Woodruff to the City's
crab processor seat

• October 28, 2010, adopted Resolution No. 2010-28, reappointing Stosh Anderson to the joint
City-Borough seat

• August 25, 2011, adopted Resolution No. 2011-29, reappointing Jeff Stephan to a City seat and
Albert Tyler Schmeil to a joint City-Borough seat

• August 9, 2012, adopted Resolution No. 2012-23, reappointing Linda Freed to the joint City
Borough seat

• September 12, 2013, adopted Resolution No. 2013-26, reappointing Stosh Anderson and Mike
Woodruff to the KFDA board

• August 28, 2014, adopted Resolution No. 2014-31, reappointing Linda Freed, Albert Tyler
Schmeil and Jeff Stephan to the KFDA board

• September 8, 2016, adopted Resolution No. 2016-33, reappointing Stosh Anderson to the KFDA
board

• August 10, 2017, adopted Resolution No. 2017-22, reappointing Linda Freed, Albert Tyler
Schmeil, and Jeff Stephan to the KFDA board

• September 12, 2019, adopted Resolution No. 2019-18, reappointed Mr. Stosh Anderson to the
KFDA board

FEBRUARY 13, 2020 
Agenda Item V. b. Memo Page 1 of2 

34



DISCUSSION: The Kodiak Fisheries Development Association was created jointly by the City of 

Kodiak and the Kodiak Island Borough in 2007 as the region's eligible crab community entity (ECCE). 

The KFDA is made up of seven directors who serve staggered three-year terms: two appointed by the 

City, two appointed by the Borough, and three appointed jointly. The bylaws of the Kodiak Fisheries 

Development Association provide for appointment of Directors to the Board of the KFDA by the 

Kodiak City Council and the Kodiak Island Borough Assembly. The bylaws state in part, the Directors 

shall serve until their successors are appointed and qualified. 

Mr. John Whiddon submitted an application on January 21, 2020, for the City Crab Processor 

Representative Seat. 

ALTERNATIVES: 

1) Adopt Resolution No. 2020--07, which is recommended by staff.

2) Delay or do not adopt Resolution No. 2020--07, which is not recommended as the seat should be

officially reappointed so the group has a quorum as they begin their annual ECCE work.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: NIA 

LEGAL:N/A 

CITY MANAGER'S COMMENTS: I support this resolution to appoint Mr. John Whiddon to a three 

year term on the Kodiak Fisheries Development Association. 

ATTACHMENTS: 

Attachment A: Resolution No. 2020--07 

Attachment B: KFDA Roster and Mr. John Whiddon's application 

PROPOSED MOTION: 

Move to adopt Resolution No. 2020--07. 

FEBRUARY 13, 2020 
Agenda Item V. b. Memo Page 2 of2 

35



CITY OF KODIAK 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 2020-07 

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KODIAK APPOINTING 

A MEMBER TO THE KODIAK FISHERIES DEVELOPMENT ASSOCIATION 

WHEREAS, the North Pacific Fishery Management Council adopted the Bering 

Sea/Aleutian Islands Crab Rationalization Program as Amendments 18 and 19 to the Fishery 

Management Plan for Bering Sea/Aleutian Islands King and Tanner Crabs; and 

WHEREAS, under the Program, Kodiak was designated as an eligible crab community 

(ECC) and in connection with such designation, the City of Kodiak and the Kodiak Island Borough 

have the authority to jointly exercise certain rights of first refusal (ROFR) with respect to proces-

sor quota shares (PQS) allocated under the Program; and 

WHEREAS, to exercise the ECC ROFR, the City of Kodiak and the Kodiak Island Bor-

ough have jointly designated the Kodiak Fisheries Development Association (KFDA) as the 

region’s eligible crab community entity (ECCE) having the authority to do so on their behalf; and 

WHEREAS, the bylaws of the Kodiak Fisheries Development Association provide for 

appointment of Directors to the Board of the KFDA by the Kodiak City Council and the Kodiak 

Island Borough Assembly; and 

WHEREAS, the bylaws of the KFDA state, in part, that Directors shall serve until their 

successors are appointed and qualified; and 

WHEREAS, Mr. John Whiddon has submitted an application for the Crab processor 

Representative for a City designated Crab Processor Representative seat; and  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Kodiak, Alaska, 

that the following individual is appointed as a Director of the Kodiak Fisheries Development 

Association, with the noted term: 

City Appointees:  Crab Processor Rep. – John Whiddon (07/22) 

 CITY OF KODIAK 

_____________________________________ 

MAYOR 

ATTEST: 

______________________________________ 

CLERK 

Adopted:  

Attachment A

36



Revision Date: 9/12/2019
Revised by: nj

KODIAK FISHERIES DEVELOPMENT ASSOCIATION
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 2019 

KODIAK ISLAND BOROUGH  /  CITY OF KODIAK 

NAME TERM PHONE EMAIL 

CITY APPOINTEES 
Crab Processor Representative 
VACANT  7/2022

Crab Harvester Representative 
VACANT 7/2020 486-4568

JOINT APPOINTEES 
Stosh Anderson 

Linda Freed 

Albert Tyler Schmeil 

7/2022 

7/2020 

7/2020 

486-3673

486-5314

486-8587

stosh_a@hotmail.com 

freed@gci.net 

tmschmeil@gci.net 

BOROUGH APPOINTEES 
Crab Processors Representative 
Tuck Bonney 7/2021 

486-3234

Crab Harvester Representative 
Jerry Bongen 7/2021 486-6245 jbongen@mac.com 

OFFICE OF THE CITY MANAGER 

710 MILL BAY ROAD, ROOM 114 

KODIAK, AK 99615 

CITY MANAGER, Mike Tvenge 486-8640  mtvenge@city.kodiak.ak.us 

STAFF: 

Resolution No. FY2008-04 states: “Directors shall be appointed by joint resolution of the Borough Assembly 
and City Council. Appointments shall take place annually, at July meetings of the Borough Assembly and City 
Council. Directors shall have staggered three (3) year terms of office, assigned by a random selection method 
at the first Board meeting, such that as close as possible to one third (1/3) of the Board is up for appointment 
each year. Directors shall serve until their successors are appointed and qualified.” 

Attachment B

37

mailto:jstephan@ptialaska.net
mailto:stosh_a@hotmail.com
mailto:freed@gci.net
mailto:tmschmeil@gci.net
mailto:jbongen@mac.com
mailto:mtvenge@city.kodiak.ak.us
njavier
Highlight

njavier
Highlight



City Clerk's Office 
710 Mill Bay Road, Rm. 110 
Kodiak, AK 99615 
(907) 486-8636 / (907) 486-8600 (fax) 

ADVISORY BOARD APPLICATION 

l}J (-{ ' 0 fJ~Af 
NAME 

C,Lfz- li&So 
HOME TELEPHONE WORK TELEPHONE 

I I { &> &£ evn cJ-.F c.; r 
RESIDENCE (STREET) ADDRESS 

~ 
MAILING ADDRESS 

LENGTH OF RESIDENCE IN KODIAK 

Are you a registered voter in the City of Kodiak? 
Do you own property in the City of Kodiak? 

On which boards are you interested in serving? 
(List in order of preference 

LENGTH OF RESIDNCE IN ALASKA 

Yes N No [] 
Yes .t..;J No [ ] 

List your areas of expertise and education that would 
benefit the boards for which you are applying. 

J:-&D 1&A-: {;JllUt~8 Ow (.wj)~ ___. ________________ _ 
Its Y~ ,vv:~ 

Community Activities: __________ _ 

(•c 7 {..oa /IJ C fl._ 

Professional Activities: /,/A.JU MW] 

< ~ ~U<? r tv G 

Signature 

Return application to City Clerk, 710 Mill Bay Road, Rm. 110, Kodiak, AK 99615 
Fax: 486-8600 RECEIVED ' • 

Revised: October 2019 JAN 21 2020 
CITY OF KODIAK 

CITY CLERK'S OFFI<'-38



(This page left intentionally blank.) 



To: 

From: 

Date: 

MEMORANDUM TO COUNCIL 

Mayor Branson and City Councilmembers � 
Mike Tvenge, City �er and Nova M. Javier, City Clerk�
February 13, 2020 

Agenda Item: V. c. Resolution No. 2020-08, Rescinding Resolution No. 2012-05 and Re
Establishing Standing and Special Rules of the Council 

SUMMARY: In accordance with City Code, the most current edition of Robert's Rules of Order Newly

Revised (RRNR) is the Council's parliamentary authority. RRNR permits special and standing rules be adopted via resolution. Special rules supersede rules in the parliamentary authority (RRNR), and standing rules relate to the details of administration of the Council. The Council reviewed its special and standing rules at the January 25, 2020 planning work session and voiced a consensus to amend Section 8, City of Kodiak Membership Organization by taking advantage of an affiliate membership to the National League of Cities (NLC) through the Alaska Municipal League (AML). Resolution No. 2020--08 includes the changes discussed at the January 25 planning work session, and staff recommends the Council adopt Resolution No. 2020--08. 
PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTION: • January 24, 2002, the Council adopted Resolution No. 02-01, Adopting Standing Rules of theCouncil• March 24, 2005, the Council adopted Resolution No. 05-6, Rescinding Resolution Number 02-01and Re-Establishing Standing and Special Rules of the Council• February 28, 2008, the Council adopted Resolution No. 08-02, Rescinding Resolution NumberOS-Sand Re-Establishing Standing and Special Rules of the Council• January 28, 2012, the Council voiced a consensus at the planning work session to revise Section 3pertaining to setting work session agenda items for discussion• February 23, 2012, the Council adopted Resolution No. 2012-05 which rescinded Resolution No.2008-02 and re-established the standing rules of the council which included revision of Section 3regarding setting work session agenda items for discussion• January 25, 2020, the Council voiced a consensus at the planning work session to revise Section 8to clarify that the National League of Cities membership will be maintained with an affiliatemembership through the Alaska Municipal League
DISCUSSION: The Council reviews its standing and special rules annually. At the January 25, 2020, planning work session, the Council voiced a consensus to revise Section 8, City of Kodiak Membership Organization by specifying that membership to the National League of Cities will be maintained with an 

FEBRUARY 13, 2020 
Agenda Item V.c. Memo Page 1 of2 

39



affiliate membership through the Alaska Municipal League (AML). The affiliate membership allows the 

City to take advantage of the discounted rate offered through AML. 

ALTERNATIVES: 

1. Adopt Resolution No. 2020-08, which is recommended because it reflects Council's expressed desire

and actual practice.

2. Fail to adopt Resolution No. 2020-08, which is not recommended.

CITY CLERK COMMENTS: In 2019, Alaska Municipal League was able to negotiate affiliate 

memberships to the National League of Cities for municipalities with less than 20,000 in population at a 

discounted rate or bundled rate. Utilizing the affiliate membership through AML would save the City of 

Kodiak approximately $800. Instead of paying the membership fee directly to NLC, the annual AML 

membership invoice will include the NLC affiliate dues of approximately $375. The Clerk recommends 

adoption of this change. 

CITY MANAGER'S COMMENTS: I support the changes to Section 8 of the Council's Standing and 

Special Rules as discussed during the annual planning meeting and mentioned above. 

ATTACHMENTS: 

Attachment A: Resolution No. 2020-08 

PROPOSED MOTION: 

Move to adopt Resolution No. 2020-08. 

FEBRUARY 13, 2020 
Agenda Item V.c. Memo Page 2 of2 

40



CITY OF KODIAK 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 2020-08 

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KODIAK RESCIND-

ING RESOLUTION NO. 2012–05 AND RE-ESTABLISHING STANDING AND SPE-

CIAL RULES OF THE COUNCIL 

WHEREAS, the City Council initially established its Standing and Special Rules with 

Resolution No. 02–01 and subsequently amended its Rules with Resolution Nos. 05–6; 08–02, 

and 12-05; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council reviewed its Special and Standing Rules at the January 25, 

2020, planning meeting; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council desires to amend Section 8, City of Kodiak Membership 

Organization by taking advantage of the discounted affiliate membership rate to the National 

League of Cities through the Alaska Municipal League. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Kodiak, Alaska, 

that Resolution No. 12-05 is hereby rescinded. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Kodiak, Alaska, that the 

following Rules are hereby adopted and shall remain in effect until rescinded or amended: 

Section 1: Items for Regular Meeting Agendas. Regular meeting agenda items shall be 

established by the Mayor, any two Councilmembers, and/or the City Manager. 

The Clerk may also place routine items on the agenda. 

Section 2: Agenda Amendments. Except in the event of an emergency, or to consider an 

extremely time-sensitive issue, motions to amend the agenda shall not be made. 

(Any amendment to an agenda that results in an official Council action for which 

sufficient public notice has not been given is a violation of the Alaska Open Meet-

ings Act and is grounds for recall.) 

Section 3: Work Session Agenda Discussion Items.  Work session agendas are set at the 

weekly agenda setting meetings by the Mayor, Council Representative(s), Man-

ager, and Clerk. Any two Councilmembers may also add an item to the work ses-

sion agenda. At the request of a citizen, the Mayor, a Councilmember, the City 

Manager, or the City Clerk, an item may be listed on the work session agenda un-

der “To Be Scheduled.” 

Section 4: Time Limits for Public Comments. Unless the Mayor announces a different 

time limit for public comments, the Clerk shall set a timer for three minutes for 

public comments during regular and special meetings and work sessions. 

Attachment A

41



Section 5: Presiding Officer in the Absence of the Mayor and Deputy Mayor. The most 

recent Deputy Mayor shall preside at meetings when both the Mayor and Deputy 

Mayor are absent. 

Section 6: Cell Phones. Cell phones must be turned off or muted during regular and special 

meetings. A member cannot leave the chambers to answer a cell phone unless a 

recess has been called. 

Section 7: Certificates of Appreciation, Proclamations, Letters of Support, etc. The 

Mayor is authorized to proclaim events, issue certificates of appreciation, and sign 

letters of support for various nonprofit agencies, etc. 

Section 8: City of Kodiak Membership in Organizations.  As a matter of policy, the City 

of Kodiak shall decline membership in organizations whose mission does not 

promote or support municipal government. Unless otherwise directed by the 

Council, the City shall maintain membership with the following: Alaska Munici-

pal League, Southwest Alaska Municipal Conference, and National League of 

Cities (NLC). NLC membership will be maintained with an affiliate member-

ship through the Alaska Municipal League.  

Section 9: Public Hearings/Amendments to Motions. The following process shall be 

followed with respect to public hearings: 

 The agenda item shall be read by the Mayor.

 A staff report shall be given.

 A main motion shall be made and seconded.

 The public hearing shall be opened.

 The public hearing shall be closed after public comments are made.

 Amendments to the main motion may be made, if desired.

 The public hearing shall be reopened ONLY if an amendment alters the

substantive content of the ordinance.

 The roll call vote shall be taken on any amendment(s).

 The roll call vote shall be taken on the main motion.

Section 10: Restatement of Motion. Once made and seconded, a motion is considered to be 

before the Council and does not need to be restated by the Mayor. 

Section 11: Right of Motion Maker to Modify or Withdraw Motion. The maker of a 

motion may modify or withdraw the motion before debate/discussion has begun. 

After debate/discussion has begun, the motion “belongs” to the entire Council and 

can only be withdrawn by Council consent or amended through the usual process 

of amendment. 

Section 12: Voting Order. Unless a conflict has been determined in accordance with KCC 

2.10.060(d), a Councilmember shall vote when his or her name is called and may 

not pass. 

42



Section 13: Change of Vote. The Clerk shall inquire if anyone desires to change a vote before 

the result is announced. 

Section 14: Reintroduction of a Defeated Motion/Proposal. A defeated motion/proposal 

may not be reintroduced for one year. However, a motion may be reintroduced 

following an election or appointment of new Councilmembers. 

Section 15: Postponed Motions. A motion may be postponed until a specific future meeting. 

The Councilmember who moves to postpone a motion shall state in the motion 

when it will be reintroduced. 

Section 16: Vote on a Motion To Reconsider. When a motion has been made to reconsider 

an action of the Council, the vote on the motion to reconsider shall be taken at the 

next regular meeting, unless otherwise stated in the motion. 

CITY OF KODIAK 

MAYOR 

ATTEST: 

CITY CLERK 

Adopted: 

43



(This page left intentionally blank.) 



MEMORANDUM TO COUNCIL 

To: Mayor Branson and City CoW1cilmembers 

From: Mike Tvenge, City Manager ~ 

Thru: Josie Bahnke, Deputy City Manager 

Date: February 13, 2020 
~ 

Agenda Item: V. d. Approval of Vertical Bridge Sublease to Cellco Partnership, D/B/A 
Verizon Wireless 

SUMMARY: Vertical Bridge S3 Assets, LLC (Vertical Bridge) is the City's current tenant at Pillar 
Mountain Communication Site #3 under a land lease agreement dated November 1, 2009. Vertical Bridge 
has requested consent to sublease approximately 80 square feet of ground space and a ten foot contiguous 
vertical envelope of space on Vertical Bridge's tower to Cellco Partnership d/b/a Verizon Wireless. 

PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTION: 

• September 24, 2009, Council adopted Ordinance No. 1265, which authorized a five-year lease of 
a communications site with GCI 

• January 24, 2013, Council authorized the assignment of Pillar Mt. Communication Site 3 lease to 
AWN 

• August 11, 2016, Council authorized Lease Assignment and Sublease of a Portion of Pillar 
Mountain Antenna Site Lease 3 From Alaska Wireless Network, LLC (AWN) to AWN Tower 
Company, LLC and the Purchase of AWN Tower Company, LLC by Vertical Bridge Tower II, 
LLC, and the Sublease From AWN Tower Company, LLC to Alaska Wireless Network, LLC 

DISCUSSION: The City has had a lease with GCI and Vertical Bridge for a communications site located 

on the City's Pillar Mountain Site No. 3 since 2009. Since then, the City CoW1cil has authorized the 
assignment of that lease on two separate occasions and also approved requests for subleasing at other 
communication sites. 

Staff consulted with the City's attorney who determined the requested sublease required Council 
authorization in accordance with Kodiak City Code 18.20.230 which specifies that "no lessee may 
sublease lands or any part thereof leased from the city without prior written permission approved by the 
council and signed by the city manager. Subleases shall be in writing and be subject to the terms and 

conditions of the original lease." The attorney recommended the assignment be approved by a motion of 
the CoW1cil. 

FEBRUARY I 3, 2020 
Agenda Item V.d. Memo Page 1 of2 

44



ALTERNATIVES: Council may approve the lease assignment by motion, which is staff’s 

recommendation, or may deny approval of the assignment which is not recommended. 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: N/A 

LEGAL: The City Attorney reviewed all pertinent documents to get complete information for the request 

and advised staff that the lease assignment requires Council approval and the approval can be done by 

motion. 

CITY MANAGER’S COMMENTS: Staff is comfortable with the approval of the sublease assignment 

since our attorney reviewed the documents and had no concerns. Vertical Bridge will be required to 

comply with all provisions of their existing lease.  

ATTACHMENTS: 

Attachment A: Vertical Bridge Request to Sublease to Verizon 

Attachment B: Sublease with Exhibit and Site Plan 

PROPOSED MOTION: 

Move to approve the Vertical Bridge sublease to Cellco Partnership, d/b/a/ Verizon Wireless and 

authorize the City Manager to execute the documents on behalf of the City. 

45



Attachment A

i~ b. vert1ca1 ridge 

VIA Certified Mail: 9314 8699 0430 0060 4034 01 

City of Kodiak 
PO Box 1397 
Kodiak, AK 99615 
Phone: (907) 486-8640 

With Copy to: 
Kodiak City Clerk 
710 Mill Bay Road #220 
Kodiak, AK 99615 

Re: 
VB Site ID: 

Notice requesting consent to sublease 
US-AK-5170 

VB Site Name: Pillar Mountain 
Site Address: Pillar Mountain Rd. Kodiak, AK 99615 

Dear Landlord: 

Vertical Bridge S3 Assets, LLC 

c/o Vertical Bridge REIT, LLC 

150 F 

Boc.:i R.:iton, FL 33487 

Phone S&l-406-4097 

Email· KVoelker@vertcalbnd6e.c.om 

June 18, 2019 

Vertical Bridge S3 Assets, LLC ("Vertical Bridge") is the current tenant under that certain Land 
Lease Agreement, dated November I, 2009 (the "Lease"), with City of Kodiak ("Landlord"). At this time, 
Vertical Bridge requests Landlord's consent to sublease to Cellco Partnership, d/b/a Verizon Wireless, or 
one of its affiliates ("Verizon Wireless"), to the extent such consent is required by the Lease. Any consents 
required by the Lease shall not be "unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed". If the Landlord 
consents to the sublease to Verizon Wireless, please countersign this letter and return in the self-addressed 
envelope enclosed, or send a scanned copy via email to, KVoelker@verticalbridge.com. 

If you have any questions, feel free to give me a call at 561-406-4097 or email me at 
KVoelker@verticalbridge.com. 

Very Truly Yours, 

Asset Manager 

Page 1 of2 

46



Agreed and acknowledged 
by Landlord: 
By: _________ _ 

Name: ---------
Ti tie: ---------
Date: _________ _ 

Page 2 of 2 

47

(Intentionally left blank.)



LEASE SUPPLEMENT 

This Lease Supplement (“Supplement”), made this _____ day of _______________, 2019, 

between Vertical Bridge S3 Assets, LLC, with its principal offices located at 

hereinafter designated LESSOR, and Cellco 

Partnership d/b/a Verizon Wireless, a Delaware partnership, with its principal offices at e 

, hereinafter designated 

LESSEE.  

1. This Supplement is a Supplement as referenced in that certain Master Lease

Agreement between Vertical Bridge REIT, LLC and Cellco Partnership d/b/a Verizon Wireless 

dated October 16, 2015 (“Agreement”).  All of the terms and conditions of the Agreement are 

incorporated hereby by reference and made a part hereof without the necessity of repeating or 

attaching the Agreement.  In the event of a contradiction, modification or inconsistency between the 

terms of the Agreement and this Supplement, the terms of this Supplement shall govern. Capitalized 

terms used in this Supplement shall have the same meaning described for them in the Agreement 

unless otherwise indicated herein. 

2. The Premises leased by the LESSOR to the LESSEE hereunder is described as

follows: 

(i) Approximately eighty (80) square feet of Ground Space for the

installation of an equipment platform and (ii) a ten foot (10’) contiguous

vertical envelope of space on the Tower with a centerline at the seventy five

foot (75’) level (the “Tower Space”) for the placement of LESSEE’s

Equipment (including, without limitation, a microwave dish so long as

LESSEE’s Tower Space has sufficient space available for the installation of

a microwave dish), as depicted on Exhibit 1 attached hereto and incorporated

herein. LESSOR also grants LESSEE, in the location set forth on Exhibit 1,

a non-exclusive easement for access and utilities (the rights related thereto

more particularly set forth in the Agreement).

In no event shall the Tower Space exceed a ten (10) foot vertical envelope on 

the Tower. 

3. In the event an Exhibit 1 is attached hereto describing the Premises, the LESSEE

shall have the right to survey the Premises and said survey shall then become Exhibit 2 which shall 

be attached hereto and made a part hereof and shall control in the event of any discrepancies between 

it and Exhibit 1.  The cost for such work shall be borne by the LESSEE. 

4. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreement, LESSOR and

LESSEE hereby agree that at LESSEE’s option, LESSEE shall have the right to lease additional 

space from LESSOR for the continued installation, operation and maintenance of its 

Communications Facility on the Property (the “Additional Leased Area”).  Upon LESSOR’s 

approval of the Additional Leased Area, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld, 

conditioned or delayed, the Parties agree to negotiate in good faith an amendment to the 

Supplement to memorialize the location of the Additional Leased Area.  LESSEE shall be 

Attachment B

vert1calbr1dge 

• 

48



permitted to use the Additional Leased Area for the same purposes LESSEE is permitted to use 

the Property.  Once the Supplement is amended to include the Additional Lease Space, such space 

shall be deemed to be included within the Premises. 

5. If the Property is subject to a Prime Lease, license or other such agreement, a copy

of such agreement is attached hereto as Exhibit 3 (the “Prime Lease”).  This Supplement shall not 

be effective until LESSEE has approved the Prime Lease, and Lessee shall be under no obligation 

to proceed under this Supplement unless and until the form and substance of the Prime Lease is 

acceptable to LESSEE.  By its signature below, LESSEE acknowledges that it has reviewed and 

approved of the Prime Lease.   

6. The term of this Supplement shall be as set forth in Paragraph 5 of the Agreement,

and specifically as follows (check and initial one): 

The Site covered by this Supplement is a “BTS Site” with an initial Term 

of ten (10) years. 

LESSSOR initials LESSEE initials 

X The Site covered by this Supplement is a “Collocation Site” with an initial 

Term of five (5) years. 

LESSSOR initials LESSEE initials 

7. The rent due for the Term of this Supplement shall be an annual rental of

) to be paid in equal monthly installments 

on the first day of the month, in advance, to LESSOR at VB-S1 Issuer, LLC, P.O. Box 743906, 

Atlanta, GA 30374-3906 or to such other person, firm or place as the LESSOR may, from time to 

time, designate in writing at least thirty (30) calendar days in advance of any rental payment date. 

The Supplement shall commence on the earlier of (a) the first day of the month following the date 

LESSOR issues LESSEE a Notice to Proceed authorizing LESSEE to commence the installation of 

Lessee’s Equipment or (b) January 1, 2020  (either the “Commencement Date”).  LESSOR and 

LESSEE agree that they shall acknowledge in writing the Commencement Date by using the form 

attached hereto as Exhibit 4 to this Supplement.  LESSOR and LESSEE acknowledge and agree that 

initial rental payment(s) shall not actually be sent by LESSEE until thirty (30) days after a written 

acknowledgement confirming the Commencement Date.  By way of illustration of the preceding 

sentence, if the Commencement Date is January 1 and the written acknowledgement confirming the 

Commencement Date is dated January 14, LESSEE shall send to the LESSOR the rental payments 

for January 1 and February 1 by February 13. 

8. Special Provisions.

(a) Maximum Configuration. LESSEE shall be permitted to utilize thirteen thousand (13,000)

square inches of Wind Load Surface Area (as hereinafter defined) within the Tower Space

(“Maximum Configuration”). “Wind Load Surface Area” means, with respect to each

vert1calbr1dge 

□ 

□ 

49



antenna, remote radio unit, microwave dish or other equipment mounted or installed on 

the Tower, the area in square inches determined by multiplying the two largest dimensions 

of the length, width and depth of such equipment, including without limitation all mounts, 

cables and related hardware. There shall be no rent increase associated with modifications 

made by LESSEE to LESSEE’s tower based equipment so long as such modifications do 

not exceed the Maximum Configuration. 

vert1calbr1dge 

50



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have set their hands and affixed their respective 

seals the day and year first above written. 

LESSOR: 

Vertical Bridge S3 Assets, LLC 

By: 

Its: 

Title: 

Date: 

LESSEE: 

Cellco Partnership d/b/a Verizon Wireless 

By: 

Its: 

Title: 

Date: 

vert1calbr1dge 

51



EXHIBIT 1 TO SUPPLEMENT 

PREMISES 

vert1calbr1dge 

52

(Intentionally left blank.)



NEW LEASE AMENDMENT TO EXISTING LEASE RECONTRACT BTS ANCHOR TENANT

INTERNAL USE ONLY 

APP VERSION # 

LEASE # 

AMENDMENT # 

PLEASE RETURN THIS APPLICATION VIA EMAIL TO: VB Site Number:

Vertical Bridge
750 Park of Commerce Drive
Suite 200
Boca Raton, FL 33487
Attn:  Regional Leasing Manager

VB Site Name:

E-Mail: Application Date: 

Revision Dates: 

Phone: RSM Approval: 

APPLICANT / CARRIER INFORMATION 

Carrier Name: Contact Name: 

Carrier Site Number: Contact Number: 

Carrier Site Name: Contact Fax: 

Carrier Legal Entity Name: 
Contact Address: 

State of registration: 

Type of entity (LP, LLC, Corp) d/b/a     

(If applicable) 

Notice Address for Lease: Contact E-mail: 

With copies to: Additional E-mail: 

Carrier Invoice Address: Other: 

Carrier Invoice Contact - 
Name, Title, Phone No. 

Carrier NOC# 

ADDITIONAL CONTACT INFORMATION 

Leasing Contact Name/Number: 

RF Contact Name/Number: 

Construction Contact Name/Number: 

Emergency Contact Name/Number: 

SITE INFORMATION – This information can be found and should match the information on www.verticalbridge.com
Latitude: N Existing Structure Type: 

Longitude: W Existing Structure Height: 

Site Address: 

FREQUENCY/TECHNOLOGY INFORMATION 

Type of Technology for all equipment 

(i.e., 3G, LTE, CMDA, MW, WiFi, TV, etc.) 

TX Frequency (MHz) 

RX Frequency (MHz) 

Tenants using an unlicensed band must provide exact Frequency Channels and 
Call Sign(s) to be utilized. (Providing the band range only will not be accepted.) 

PLEASE PROVIDE BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF GENERAL SCOPE OF WORK 

vertical bridge 

r r r r 

I 

53

www.verticalbridge.com
http://www.verticalbridge.com


EXISTING EQUIPMENT 

Applicant’s Existing Equipment Configuration and Specifications 

Equipment 

Type 
 (ex: panel, 

TMA, RRU) 

RAD 
(feet) 

Mount 
Height 

(feet) 

Mount Type 
Equip 
Qty 

Equipment 
Manufacturer 

Equipment Model 
# 

Equip Dim 
(HxWxD) 

(ft or in) 

Equip 
Weight 

(lbs) 

Az Remain 

EXISTING LINES 
Applicant’s Existing Lines and Specifications 

Line Type 
Line Size 

(Inches) 

Total # of 

Lines 

Coax interior or 

exterior 
 (for monopoles) 

Remain Comments: 

vertical bridge 

54

www.verticalbridge.com


PROPOSED EQUIPMENT 

Applicant’s Proposed Equipment Configuration and Specifications 

Equipment 

Type 
 (ex: panel, 

TMA, RRU, 
ice shields) 

RAD 

(feet) 

Mount 
Height 

(feet) 

Mount Type 
Equip 

Qty 

Equipment 

Manufacturer 
Equipment Model # 

Equip Dim 
(HxWxD) 

(ft or in) 

Equip 
Weight 

(lbs) 

Azimuth 

PROPOSED LINES 

Applicant’s Proposed Lines and Specifications 

Line Type 
Line Size 
(Inches) 

Total # of 
Lines 

Coax interior or 
exterior 

 (for monopoles) 

Comments: 

Coax 

RET Home 

Run Cable 

Fiber 

DC Power 

vertical bridge 

55

www.verticalbridge.com


PROPOSED FINAL CONFIGURATION TOTALS PROPOSED FINAL CONFIGURATION TOTALS 

EQUIPMENT TYPE TOTAL LINE TYPE TOTAL 

Panel Antennas Coax 

Omni/Whip Antennas Hybrid 

RRU CAT5 

TMA DC/Power 

Diplexer / Triplexer RET 

Bias T Fiber 

Surge Suppressor 

MW Dish 

Ice Shield 

ODU 

Filter 

Combiner 

Junction Box 

RET 

Equipment Cabinets 

Other (Please specify) 

Other (Please specify) 

Other (Please specify) 

Other (Please specify) 

Other (Please specify) 

ADDITIONAL EQUIPMENT INFORMATION 

• RRUs, TMAs and ODUs are required to be installed directly behind the antennas / MW dish. Otherwise there will be an additional charge.

•

•

All equipment lines are required to be installed inside the tower when space is available.  Carriers will be charged an additional $25.00
per line per month if equipment lines are installed on the outside of the tower even though there is available space inside the tower.
Vertical Bridge must approve any installation of lines on the outside of the tower.

All tenant equipment must be installed within one continuous 10 ft vertical envelope. Exceeding this vertical space will be subject to
additional rent.

vertic.albridge 

56

www.verticalbridge.com


GROUND / INTERIOR SPACE REQUIREMENTS 

Total Ground / Interior Area Dimensions: 

L’ x W’ = Total Square Feet Required 
      X 

(Including all Equipment (i.e., Shelter, Equipment Platform or Pad, Generator Pad, 

Generator Fuel Tank Pad, Antenna Sleds, etc. – provide details below) 

Cabinet Area Dimensions (Pad/Platform)       X 
Cabinet 

Installation Type 

Shelter Pad Dimensions       X 
Shelter 

Manufacturer 

Rooftop Antenna Total Area Required       X 
Antenna Sled 
Dimensions 

(per sector) 

    X   
Antenna Wall Mount 
Dimensions 

(per sector) 

    X   

EQUIPMENT CABINET REQUIREMENTS (Required for 

rooftops or Vertical Bridge interior space) 

Number of 
Cabinets Required 

Cabinet Dimensions 
(L’ x W’ x H’) 

Manufacturer: 

Number of 
Cabinets Required 

Cabinet Dimensions 
(L’ x W’ x H’) 

Manufacturer: 

Number of 

Cabinets Required 

Cabinet Dimensions 

(L’ x W’ x H’) 
Manufacturer: 

Equipment Cabinet Comments 

GENERATOR REQUIREMENTS 

Generator Required?: Generator Fuel Type Generator Size 

Generator Pad Dimensions Generator Manufacturer 

Generator Fuel Tank Pad Dimensions Fuel Tank Manufacturer 

AC POWER REQUIREMENTS 

Meter Type 
Estimated Monthly Utility 
Usage Amount 

Voltage Total Amperage 

FIBER / BACKHAUL 

Fiber Installation 

Status 
Fiber Provider 

Cable Type 
Number of 

Points of Entry 
Conduit/Riser Size (in inches) 

STRUCTURAL ANALYSIS DETAILS 

Structural 
Hardcopies 

Required? 

If wet seals required, please 

provide address:

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS 

vertical bridge 

I I I I 

57

www.verticalbridge.com


EXHIBIT 2 TO SUPPLEMENT 

SURVEY 

vert1calbr1dge 

58

(Intentionally left blank.)



EXHIBIT 3 TO SUPPLEMENT 

PRIME LEASE 

vert1calbr1dge 

59

(Intentionally left blank.)



EXHIBIT 4 TO SUPPLEMENT 

WRITTEN ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF LEASE COMMENCEMENT 

 
 

 

 

vert1calbr1dge 

VERIZON WIRELESS HQ NETWORK REAL ESTATE 
WRITTEN ACKNOWLEDGEM ENT OF 

LEASE COMMENCEMENT 

The Verizon Wireless representative is responsible ftr compleling, Section 1. then providing, lo lhe Landlord for 
c:ompletiDn of Section 2. 

SECTK>NI 1 - This section lo be com eted b Verizon W ireless 

Sru.Name: 

Sm, Address: 

Contract Number: G l location Number: ________ _ 

Commencement Date: 

SECTION! 2 - This section lo be completed by I CMOC{ I amtlg;d and then returned to-the Verizon W ireless 
~ tatiYe_ 

CompanJ N;ame: 
(I appllcable) 

Acknowledged lby 
Less-or I L..andlonl: 

Printed N:ame 
of lessor I l..andlord: 

------------------------
Title: 

(r appfeable 

D;at,, : 

----------------< 

SECTION! 3 - This sedion is lo be completed by the Veriz°" W"""""" Regional Manager AFTER 1he landlord has 
Acknowl ed !he Commencement Date. 

Signature: 

Printedl N:ame.: 
------------------------- D;at,, : 

Special Instructions: 

The Verizon Wireless representative is responsib le ftr sending this completed fem, _ along w1lh a fully compleled 
Commence ai Lease / Exercise an Option Fom, to HQ Nehlolk Real Esl a.te using the appropriate Area ma.ibox. 

Re"""1 4.20IS 

60



C
O

N
T

A
C

T
 I

N
FO

R
M

A
T

IO
N

P
al

m
er

A
n
ch

or
ag

e

Ju
n
ea

u

P
il
la

r 
M

t

C
oh

oe

B
et

he
l

U
tq

ia
gv

ik

N
om

e

D
R

A
W

IN
G

 I
N

D
E

X

C
IV

IL
 E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

D
A

L
E

 
R

.
 
B

R
O

W
N

I
N

G
,
 
P

E

P
H

O
N

E
 
-
 
(
9

0
7

)
 
7

6
1

-
6

0
6

9

P
R
O
J
E
C
T

A
R
E
A

F
ai

rb
an

k
s

C
O

V
E

R
SH

E
E

T

T
1.

0

V
E

R
IZ

O
N

 W
IR

E
L

E
SS

PI
L

L
A

R
 M

T

(
9
0
7
)
 
2
7
8
-
3
1
2
1

PR
O

JE
C

T
 I

N
FO

R
M

A
T

IO
N

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 
L

O
C

A
T

I
O

N
:
 
P

I
L

L
A

R
 
M

T
 
R

D
 
-
 
K

O
D

I
A

K
,
 
A

K

N
H

T
I
 
P

R
O

J
E

C
T

 
N

U
M

B
E

R
:
 
1

9
-
0

1
4

2
-
2

0
-
2

4

N
E

W
 H

O
R

IZ
O

N
S 

T
E

L
E

C
O

M
, I

N
C

.

P
H

O
N

E
 
-
 
(
9

0
7

)
 
7

6
1

-
6

0
0

0

9
0

1
 
C

O
P

E
 
I
N

D
U

S
T

R
I
A

L
 
W

A
Y

P
A

L
M

E
R

,
 
A

L
A

S
K

A
 
9

9
6

4
5

L
I
C

E
N

S
E

 
#

 
A

E
C

C
6

1
0

SH
E

E
T

 #
T

IT
L

E
R

E
V

 #
T

1
.
0

C
O

V
E

R
 
S

H
E

E
T

A

D
A
TE

D
ES
C
R
IP
TI
O
N

R
EV

FILE: X:\19 JOBS\19-0142-20 VZW - SITE PERMITTING & DESIGN\05-ENGR\CADD\24 - PILLAR MT\T1.0 COVER SHEET.DWG | PLOT DATE: 191206

A
19

12
06

IS
SU

E
 F

O
R

 R
E

V
IE

W

C
1

.
0

S
I
T

E
 
P

L
A

N
A

L
E

A
SE

 E
X

H
IB

IT

C
2

.
0

T
O

W
E

R
 
E

L
E

V
A

T
I
O

N
A

R
E

FE
R

E
N

C
E

 D
R

A
W

IN
G

SI
T

E
 #

T
IT

L
E

A
S

-
B

U
I
L

T
 
S

U
R

V
E

Y
,
 
B

Y
 
A

C
U

T
E

K
 
-
 
S

H
E

E
T

 
2

 
O

F
 
3

U
S

-
A

K
-
5

1
7

0

• 
v
e

rl
7

0f
tw

ir
el

es
s 

NE
w"

I\'
 

0 
H

O
R

IZ
O

N
S

 

0 

. ~
 

c
,o

O
, 
p~

Q
,1

1,
-

Kn
ow

 w
ha

t's
 b

el
ow

. 
Ca

ll b
ef

or
e J

111
1 d

ig
. 

61



X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

SI
T

E
PL

A
N

C
1.

0

JA
A

D
R

B
D

R
B

D
W

N
: 

JO
B

 #
:1

9-
01

42
-2

0-
24

D
A
TE

D
ES
C
R
IP
TI
O
N

R
EV

D
SN

:  
A

PP
:  

D
A

T
E

:

V
E

R
IZ

O
N

W
IR

E
L

E
SS

PI
L

L
A

R
 M

T

R
E

V

FILE: X:\19 JOBS\19-0142-20 VZW - SITE PERMITTING & DESIGN\05-ENGR\CADD\24 - PILLAR MT\C1.0 SITE PLAN.DWG | PLOT DATE: 191206

19
12

06
A

IS
SU

E
 F

O
R

 R
E

V
IE

W

L
E

A
SE

 E
X

H
IB

IT

19
12

06

NOT F
OR C

ONSTRUCTIO
N

A

6
' 

W
IT

H
 

I I 

/'
-

C
H

A
IN

 
LI

N
K

 
F

E
N

C
E

~
 
~ "

-_
) 

3 
S

TR
A

N
D

 
B

A
R

B
E

D
 

"-
W

IR
E

 
(T

Y
P

) 
(E

) 
V

 

I
/P

R
O

P
O

S
E

D
 

\ 
U

N
D

E
R

G
R

O
U

N
D

 
, 

P
O

W
E

R
 

1
4

0
' 

TO
 

1 
X

FM
R

 
,-

/ 
I 

__
,--

I I \ 
P

IL
LA

R
 

M
T 

R
O

A
D

 
I I I I I

' I \ 
~
 

I I 
\ 

I \ 
\ 

I I 
\ 

I ,
-
/
 / 

I \ \ 
\ I I 

\ 
A

C
C

E
S

S
 

\ 

I \ I 
\ 

I \ 
\ 

,
-
/
 

,
-
/
 

,
-
/
 

,
-
/
 

,
-
/
 

,
-
/
 

,
-
/
 

,
-
/
 

/ \ 
----

----
----

\---
---

---
--

----
----

---
I 

---
---

---
--

----
----

---
----

----
---

<
 \ 
\ 

\ 
\ 

----
----

---
---

---
---

--

I I \ )-
--

" 

----
----

---
\ I \ I \ I I I I \ I 

y 

----
----

---

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 
E

Q
U

IP
M

E
N

T 
I 

C
A

B
IN

E
T

~
\ I 

\ 
\ 

=1
"'

-
8

'x
1

0
' 

V
E

R
IZ

O
N

 
-ff

 \ 
'-J

r-
:.-'

 
LE

A
S

E
 
A

R
E

A
~

_
/
 

u l
-t

:J
 

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 
G

E
N

E
R

A
TO

R
 

\_
_

 
----

----
----

----
----

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 
IC

E
 

B
R

ID
G

E
 

----

/ 
,
-
/
 ---
---

---
--

/ 

/ 

/ 

_.
---

---
'\ 

---------
---

\_ 
J\

 

IC
E

 
B

R
ID

G
E

 
(E

) 

----
-

----
-

----
-

----
----

-

11
 

[
J
 

SI
T

E
 

PL
A

N
 

S
C

A
LE

: 
1

" 
=

 2
0

' 

N
O

TE
S

: 

1
. 

D
R

A
W

IN
G

S
 

A
R

E
 

A
P

P
R

O
X

IM
A

TE
 

B
A

S
E

D
 

O
N

 
S

IT
E

 
V

IS
IT

. 

\ 
. 
/8

' C
H

A
IN

 
LI

N
K

 
FE

N
C

E
 

W
IT

H
 

\
(
 

3 
S

TR
A

N
D

 
B

A
R

B
E

D
 

W
IR

E
 

(E
) 

----
-

\ 
\ 

\ 
\ 

G
U

Y
E

D
 

TO
W

E
R

 
(E

) 

/
S

M
A

L
L

 
D

O
M

E
 

0 
A

N
TE

N
N

A
 

(E
) 

\ 
\ 

/C
O

N
lR

O
L

 B
O

X 
(E

) 

----
-\ 

\ _
\ 

"
~

 
----

-
----

-
----

-
----

-

~
=

2
0

'
 

0 
1

0
 

2
0

 
4

0
 

NE
~~,

 
H

O
R

IZ
O

N
S

 

• 
ve

r1
2_

on
w

ir
el

es
s 

C
O

PY
R

IG
H

T 
NO

TI
CE

 
TH

IS
 

LA
YO

U
T/

D
ES

IG
N

 
IS

 
AN

 
U

N
PU

BL
IS

H
ED

 
W

O
RK

, 
AN

D 
NE

W
 

H
O

R
IZ

O
N

'S
 

TE
LE

C
O

M
, 

IN
C

. 
H

ER
EB

Y 
RE

SE
RV

ES
 

IT
S 

CO
M

M
O

N 
LA

W
 

RI
G

HT
, 

PU
R

SU
AN

T 
TO

 
TI

TL
E 

17
 

SE
CT

IO
N 

2 
O

F 
TH

E 
U

SA
 

CO
DE

 
TO

 
PR

EV
EN

T 
AN

Y 
U

N
AU

TH
O

R
IZ

ED
 

C
O

PY
IN

G
, 

PU
BL

IC
AT

IO
N

 
O

R 
U

SE
 

O
F 

TH
IS

 
DE

SI
G

N 
AN

D 
TO

 
O

BT
AI

N 
DA

M
AG

ES
 

TH
ER

EF
O

R
E.

 

62

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTES: : 1. DRAWINGS ARE APPROXIMATE BASED ON SITE VISIT. DRAWINGS ARE APPROXIMATE BASED ON SITE VISIT. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
1" = 20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
C1.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
COPYRIGHT NOTICE THIS LAYOUT/DESIGN IS AN UNPUBLISHED WORK, AND NEW HORIZON'S TELECOM, INC. HEREBY RESERVES ITS COMMON LAW RIGHT, PURSUANT TO TITLE 17 SECTION 2 OF THE USA CODE TO PREVENT ANY UNAUTHORIZED COPYING, PUBLICATION OR USE OF THIS DESIGN AND TO OBTAIN DAMAGES THEREFORE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SMALL DOME ANTENNA (E)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONTROL BOX (E)

AutoCAD SHX Text
ICE BRIDGE (E)

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'x16' HUT (E)

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'x12' SHELTER (E)

AutoCAD SHX Text
ICE BRIDGE (E)

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACCESS

AutoCAD SHX Text
PILLAR MT ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' CHAIN LINK FENCE WITH 3 STRAND BARBED WIRE (TYP) (E)

AutoCAD SHX Text
100' GUYED TOWER (E)

AutoCAD SHX Text
GUYED TOWER (E)

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
40

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1" = 20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
8'x10' VERIZON LEASE AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED GENERATOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED EQUIPMENT CABINET

AutoCAD SHX Text
8' CHAIN LINK FENCE WITH 3 STRAND BARBED WIRE (E)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED UNDERGROUND POWER 140' TO XFMR

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED ICE BRIDGE



T
O

W
E

R
E

L
E

V
A

T
IO

N

C
2.

0

JA
A

D
R

B
D

R
B

D
W

N
: 

JO
B

 #
:1

9-
01

42
-2

0-
24

D
A
TE

D
ES
C
R
IP
TI
O
N

R
EV

D
SN

:  
A

PP
:  

D
A

T
E

:

V
E

R
IZ

O
N

W
IR

E
L

E
SS

PI
L

L
A

R
 M

T

R
E

V

FILE: X:\19 JOBS\19-0142-20 VZW - SITE PERMITTING & DESIGN\05-ENGR\CADD\24 - PILLAR MT\C2.0 TOWER ELEVATION.DWG | PLOT DATE: 191206

19
12

06
A

IS
SU

E
 F

O
R

 R
E

V
IE

W

L
E

A
SE

 E
X

H
IB

IT

19
12

06

NOT F
OR C

ONSTRUCTIO
N

A

EL
 

7
5

' 

1 o
o·

 G
U

YE
D

 
TO

W
ER

 

VE
R

IZ
O

N
 

AN
TE

N
N

AS
 

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 

1 O
' 

VE
R

TI
C

AL
 

EN
VE

LO
PE

 

TO
W

ER
 

E
L

E
V

A
T

IO
N

 
E

X
IS

T
IN

G
 

TO
W

ER
 

PH
O

T
O

 
SC

AL
E:

 
N

O
N

E 
SC

AL
E:

 
N

O
N

E 

NE
~~,

 
H

O
R

IZ
O

N
S

 

• 
ve

r1
2_

on
w

ir
el

es
s 

C
O

PY
R

IG
H

T 
NO

TI
CE

 
TH

IS
 

LA
YO

U
T/

D
ES

IG
N

 
IS

 
AN

 
U

N
PU

BL
IS

H
ED

 
W

O
RK

, 
AN

D 
NE

W
 

H
O

R
IZ

O
N

'S
 

TE
LE

C
O

M
, 

IN
C

. 
H

ER
EB

Y 
RE

SE
RV

ES
 

IT
S 

CO
M

M
O

N 
LA

W
 

RI
G

HT
, 

PU
R

SU
AN

T 
TO

 
TI

TL
E 

17
 

SE
CT

IO
N 

2 
O

F 
TH

E 
U

SA
 

CO
DE

 
TO

 
PR

EV
EN

T 
AN

Y 
U

N
AU

TH
O

R
IZ

ED
 

C
O

PY
IN

G
, 

PU
BL

IC
AT

IO
N

 
O

R 
U

SE
 

O
F 

TH
IS

 
DE

SI
G

N 
AN

D 
TO

 
O

BT
AI

N 
DA

M
AG

ES
 

TH
ER

EF
O

R
E.

 

63

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOWER ELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
NONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
C2.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
100' GUYED TOWER

AutoCAD SHX Text
VERIZON ANTENNAS PROPOSED 10' VERTICAL ENVELOPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EL 75'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING TOWER PHOTO

AutoCAD SHX Text
NONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
C2.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
COPYRIGHT NOTICE THIS LAYOUT/DESIGN IS AN UNPUBLISHED WORK, AND NEW HORIZON'S TELECOM, INC. HEREBY RESERVES ITS COMMON LAW RIGHT, PURSUANT TO TITLE 17 SECTION 2 OF THE USA CODE TO PREVENT ANY UNAUTHORIZED COPYING, PUBLICATION OR USE OF THIS DESIGN AND TO OBTAIN DAMAGES THEREFORE.



®
 

®
 

©
 LE

G
EN

D
: 

SI
TE

 
DE

TA
IL

: 
c1

·=2
0·>

 

M
EA

SU
R

ED
 

D
A

TA
 

R
EC

O
R

D
 

D
A

TA
 

N
 

9
0

°0
0

'0
0

" 
W

 
(N

 
90

°0
0•

00
• 

W
) 

PR
O

PE
R

TY
 

BO
U

N
D

AR
Y 

LI
N

ES
 -
-
-
-
-


AD
JA

C
EN

T 
PR

O
PE

R
TY

 
LI

N
ES

 
-
-
-
-
-


C
EN

TE
R

LI
N

E 

FE
N

C
E 

AS
 

N
O

TE
D

 

R
EC

O
VE

R
ED

 
5

/8
" 

R
EB

AR
 

SE
T 

5
/8

" 
R

EB
AR

 
CL

S 
91

06
) 

R
EC

O
VE

R
ED

 
M

O
NU

M
EN

T 

U
TI

LI
TY

 
P

E
D

E
S

TA
L 

PO
W

ER
 

PO
LE

 

SE
PT

IC
 

PI
PE

S 

0 • " 
P
E
D
□
 

P
/P

 ¢
 

SP
 

o 
R

IG
H

T-
O

F-
W

A
Y

 
-
R

o
w

-
-
-

AR
EA

 
TA

B
LE

 
SQ

U
AR

E 
FE

E
T 

P
A

R
E

N
T 

P
A

R
C

E
L 

46
,6

61
,0

36
 
+

\-

EX
C

LU
SI

VE
 

EA
SE

M
EN

T 
TB

D
 

N
O

N
-E

X
C

LU
S

IV
E

 
AC

C
ES

S 
&

 
U

TI
LI

TY
 

ES
M

T.
 

N
/A

 

AC
R

EA
G

E 
1

0
7

1
.2

+
\-

TB
D

 
N

/A
 

~c
s_

_,
/ 

IS
 ~

c\
)0

'0
 f

il
 

□
 

TR
A

N
S

.
0 

G
R

A
P

H
IC

 
SC

A
L

E
 

50
 

0 
25

 
50

 

~ 
• 

111
1 

I 
I 

--1
 

IN
CH

 
=

 5
0 

FE
E

T 

1
0

0
 I 

o 
S

M
A

LL
 

DO
M

E 
A

N
TE

N
N

A
 

A
S

-B
U

IL
T

 S
U

R
V

E
Y

 
U

.S
. 

S
lR

JE
Y

 
NO

. 
39

-1
5. 

KO
OI

AK
. 

AL
>S

t<.
A.

 K
RD

. 
TO

W
NS

I-F
 2

8 
SO

UT
H.

 R
AN

CE
 1

9 
W

ES
T 

S
~V

E
Y

O
R

'S
 

N
O

TE
S 

1.
 

BA
SI

S 
O

F 
BE

AR
IN

G
 

IS
 

PE
R

 
RE

CO
RD

 
P

LA
T 

O
F 

U
S 

SU
R

VE
Y 

NO
. 

39
45

, 
KO

D
IA

K 
RE

CO
RD

IN
G

 
D

IS
TR

IC
T.

 

2.
 

NO
 

SU
BS

U
R

FA
C

E 
IN

VE
ST

IG
AT

IO
N

 
W

AS
 

PE
R

FO
R

M
ED

 
TO

 
LO

C
A

TE
 

UN
DE

RG
RO

UN
D 

U
TI

LI
TI

ES
. 

U
TI

LI
TI

ES
 

SH
O

W
N 

H
ER

EO
N

 
AR

E 
LI

M
IT

ED
 

TO
 

AN
D 

AR
E 

PE
R

 
O

BS
ER

VE
D

 
EV

ID
EN

C
E 

O
N

LY
. 

3.
 

A
LL

 
VI

SI
BL

E 
TO

W
ER

 
EQ

U
IP

M
EN

T 
AN

D 
IM

PR
O

VE
M

EN
TS

 
AR

E 
C

O
N

TA
IN

ED
 

W
IT

HI
N 

TH
E 

D
ES

C
R

IB
ED

 
AR

EA
. 

4.
 

SU
R

VE
Y 

C
O

M
PL

ET
ED

 
IN

 
AU

G
U

ST
 

20
16

. 

5.
 

TH
IS

 
SU

R
VE

Y 
D

O
ES

 
N

O
T 

R
EP

R
ES

EN
T 

A
 

SU
R

VE
Y 

O
F 

TH
E 

PA
R

EN
T 

PA
R

C
EL

. 
R

E
A

L 
PR

O
PE

R
TY

 
SH

O
W

N 
H

ER
EO

N
 

AR
E 

AP
PL

IC
AB

LE
 

TO
 

TH
E 

TE
LE

C
O

M
M

U
N

IC
AT

IO
N

S 
SI

TE
, 

TH
ER

E 
M

AY
 

BE
 

O
TH

ER
 

IM
PR

O
VE

M
EN

TS
 

N
O

T 
SH

O
W

N.
 

~
 

v
e
rt

1
c
a
lb

r1
d

g
e
 

FO
R

: 
V

E
R

T
IC

A
L

 
B

R
ID

G
E

 
TO

'W
E

R
S

, 
LL

C
 

SI
T

E
 

N
A

M
E:

 P
IL

LA
R

 
M

O
U

N
TA

IN
 

SI
T

E
 

N
U

M
B

E
R

: 
U

S
-A

K
-5

17
O

 
A

D
D

R
E

SS
: 

PI
LL

A
R

 
M

O
U

N
TA

IN
 

RO
AD

 
K

O
D

IA
K

, 
A

LA
SK

A
 

99
61

5 
K

O
D

IA
K

 
IS

LA
N

D
 

BO
R

O
U

G
H

 
SU

R
V

E
Y

 W
O

RK
 

PE
R

FO
R

M
ED

 
BY

: 

WZ
?M

ID
? 

<
«

<
«

«
• 
GE□
MA
.f
fl
,~
 

0
9

9
 

E.
 

B
LU

E
 

LU
P

IN
E

 
D

R
 

#1
04

, 
'W

A
S

IL
LA

 
A

K
 

9
9

6
5

 
(9

07
) 

37
6-

88
00

 
FA

X 
(9

07
) 

37
6-

96
29

 
AC

UT
EK

SU
RV

EY
.C

DM
 

DR
AW

N 
BY

: 
TE

N:
lR

A 
I CI

-E
a<

ED
 B

Y:
 

TE
RR

Y 
I JO

B 
fl:

 
16

-1
0.

15
9 

N
A

TI
O

N
A

L 
SU

R
V

E
Y

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 

C
O

O
R

D
IN

A
TI

O
N

 B
Y

: 
13

43
0 

N
W

 1
04

th
 T

er
ra

ce
, 

S
u

ite
 A

 

G
 E

r-
al

 l
 N

 ~
 

A
la

ch
ua

, 
F

L
3

2
6

1
5

 
. 
W

,-
. 

.C
. 

O
ffi

ce
:(

38
6)

 4
1

8
-0

5
0

0
 

S
U

R
V

E
Y

 I N
G

 
I"-

1 
C

 
F

ax
:(

38
6)

 4
62

-9
98

6 
· 

• 
· 

l'
I
 ·

· 
' 

W
W

W
.G

E
O

L
IN

E
IN

C
.C

O
M

 

SH
EE

T 
2 

O
F 

3 

64

RKennepohl
Rectangle

RKennepohl
Callout
Proposed VZ Equipment Location



(This page left intentionally blank.) 



MEMORANDUM TO COUNCIL 

To: Mayor Branson and City Councilmembers 

From: Mike Tvenge, City Manager � 

Thru: Kelly Mayes, Finance Director 

Date: February 13, 2020 

Agenda Item: V. e. Acceptance of the FY 2019 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report and
Audit 

SUMMARY: Each year, the City Council retains an independent accounting firm to perform an annual 
audit of the City's financial records and accounting practices. The City Charter and City Code require 
the Council to accept the comprehensive annual financial report. Council typically accepts the report and 
results of the audit by motion. Staff recommends Council approve the results of the financial statement 
audit for Fiscal Year 2019 in accordance with KCC 3.24.020 and accept the Fiscal Year 2019 
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. 

PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTION: On May 25, 2017, the City Council authorized the professional 
services contract for Altman, Rogers & Co to perform independent audit services for fiscal years 2017, 
2018, 2019 with an option to extend for two consecutive years. The audited comprehensive annual 
financial report was presented by Altman, Rogers & Co at the February 11, 2020 work session. 

DISCUSSION: Article V, Section 21 of the City Charter requires an annual audit of the accounting and 
the financial records of the City by independent certified public accountants. This charter section 
requires the auditor to examine all funds of the City in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in 
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit 
requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative

Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance); and 
the State of Alaska Audit Guide and Compliance Supplement for state single audits. Government 
Auditing Standards require the independent auditor to report on internal control over financial reporting 
and on compliance and other matters and to report on compliance for each major federal program and on 
internal control over compliance as required by Uniform Guidance. 

The auditors from Altman, Rogers & Co worked with City staff during the summer and into the fall of 
2019 to plan and perform their audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. As in past years, staff 
recommends Council review and then approve the final FY2019 audited comprehensive annual fmancial 
report by motion at this meeting. 

FEBRUARY 13, 2020 
Agenda Item V.e. Memo Page I of2 

65



ALTERNATIVES: NIA 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: Compliance with Kodiak City Code Section 3.24.020 is required. It 

states that "upon Council's acceptance of the annual financial report, necessary budgetary/accounting 

entries shall be recorded in the succeeding fiscal year for all outstanding encumbrances and incurred 

obligations, as disclosed in the prior fiscal year's annual financial report." 

LEGAL:N/A 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the City Council accept the Fiscal Year 2019 

audited comprehensive annual financial report by motion. 

CITY MANAGER'S COMMENTS: Once again the city's audit firm has disclosed no significant 

findings or misstatements. The finance department maintains clear and consistent financial records 

resulting in a highly performing audit. I would like to acknowledge the work of the finance department 

and the director in producing the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for FY2019. 

PROPOSED MOTION: 

Move to accept the City's Fiscal Year 2019 audited Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. 

FEBRUARY 13, 2020 
Agenda Item V.e. Memo Page 2 of2 

66



MEMORANDUM TO COUNCIL 

To: Mayor Branson and City Councilmembers 

From: Mike Tvenge, City Manager ~ 
Date: February 13, 2020 

Agenda V. f. Authorization of Payment to Golden Alaska Excavating, LLC for 
Item: Equipment/Operator Cost Contracted Work at the Snow Dump 

SUMMARY: The City of Kodiak hired Golden Alaska Excavating LLC to mobilize and operate a loader 
and a dozer at the city's snow dump off Pillar Mountain road. Golden Alaska Excavating provided a 
loader, a dozer and an operator. They were instructed to stack snow as high as their equipment could reach 
as all of our equipment and personnel were very busy. The city does not own a dozer. The invoice received 
from Golden Alaska Excavating exceeded the manager's authority of $35,000 and it is due and payable 
within thirty (30) calendar days of the effective date of January 16. I recommend Council approve this 
authorization of payment and direct the City Manager to issue payment. 

PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTION: The City Council routinely authorized equipment rental for the 
Public Works Department. 

BACKGROUND: During each budget cycle, Public Works has included funding to hire a contractor to 
stack snow at the designated site. Recent winters have not required use of this account. 

DISCUSSION: This winter the snowfall has exceeded the capacity at the designed and designated snow 
dwnp site and alternative sites have been needed. Just last week ADEC Division of Water, Wastewater 
Discharge Authorization Program has granted the city a temporary disposal site off the harbor spit. 

ALTERNATIVES: 
1) I recommend Council authorize the payment reflected in the invoice. 
2) Do not authorize this payment, which is not recommended. 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: Funding will be provided from the General Fund-Streets-Equipment 
Rental Fund 

LEGAL: KCC 3.12.020 Limitation on city manager's authority 

The city manager may make an acquisition, sale, transfer, or contract authorized by KCC 3 .12.010 without 
council approval, open market, or bidding procedures, if the value of the property, service, or contract 
does not exceed $35,000. 

FEBRUARY 13, 2020 
Agenda Item V.f. Memo Page 1 of2 

67



STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff recorru;nends Council authorize payment to Golden Alaska 
Excavating LLC. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Attachment A: Golden Alaska Excavating LLC Invoice 

PROPOSED MOTION: 
Move to authorize the payment of the Equipment/Operator Cost Contracted Work at the snow 
dump to Golden Alaska Excavating, LLC in the amount of $36,050 with funds coming from 
General Fund-Streets-Equipment Rental. 

FEBRUARY 13, 2020 
Agenda Item V .f. Memo Page 2 of 2 

68



Attachment A

Golden Alaska Excavating, LLC 
PO Box 8908 
Kodiak, AK 99615 

Bill To 

City of Kodiak. Public Works 
2410 Mill Bay Rd 
Kodiak. AK 99615 

Invoice 
Date Invoice# 

1/ 16/2020 2020002 

Checks payable to Golden Alaska Excavating, LLC Terms Project 

Credit Cards accepted for an additional 3% Admin fee 
Due on receipt Snow Dump 

Item Description Unit 

EQIBP OPER ... 12/30/19 Mobilize/operate 966 loader hour 
EQUIP OPER ... 12/3 1/ 19 Operate loader hour 
EQUIP OPER ... I / 1/20 Operate loader hour 
EQUIP OPER ... 1/4/20 Operate loader hour 
EQUIP OPER ... 1 /5/20 Operate loader hour 
EQUIP OPER ... I /6/20 Operate loader hour 
EQUIP OPER ... 1/7/20 Operate loader hour 
EQUIP OPER ... l /8/20 Operate loader hour 
EQUIP OPER ... 1/8/20 mobilize 850 dozer/Tractor, lowboy, icy conditions 
EQUIP OPER ... 1/8/20 Operate dozer hour 
EQUIP OPER ... I /9/20 Operate dozer hour 
EQUIP OPER ... I/ I 0/20 Operate dozer hour 
EQUIP OPER ... 1/11/20 Operate loader hour 
EQUIP OPER ... 1 / 12/20 Operate loader hour 
EQUIP OPER ... 1/ 14/20 Operate loader hour 
EQUIP OPER ... 1/15/20 Operate loader hour 

Tax Exempt Gov Agency 

Thank you for your business. 

All payments are due upon receipt of invoice. If full payment is not received within 30 
dr~vs of invoice date a late charge of 1.5% will be assessed 011 the over due balance. 

907.512.0737 
I 720 Mill Bay Rd 
Email: gae@gci.net 
W\Vw.goldenalaska.biz 

Qty Rate Amount 

10 300.00 3.000.00 
I 300.00 300.00 

12.5 300.00 3.750.00 
4 300.00 1.200.00 
4 300.00 1.20.0.00 

11.5 300.00 3.450.00 
5 300.00 1,500.00 

7.5 300.00 2.250.00 
1,000.00 1,000.00 

2 380.00 760.00 
9 380.00 3,420.00 
9 380.00 3,420.00 
9 300.00 2.700.00 
9 300.00 2.700.00 
9 300.00 2.700.00 
9 300.00 2.700.00 

Subtotal $36,050.00 

Sales Tax (0.0%) $0.00 

Total $36,050.00 

Payments/Credits $0.00 

Balance Due $36,050.00 

69



EXECUTIVE SESSION 



MEMORANDUM TO COUNCIL 

To: Mayor Branson and City Council.members 

From: Mike Tvenge, City Manager � 

Date: February 13, 2020 

Agenda Item: X. a. Discussion With the City Attorney About the City of Kodiak-Ocean Beauty

Lease Agreement Post Termination Issues 

SUMMARY: The City Council will enter into executive session to discuss post termination issues 
regarding the Ocean Beauty lease agreement with the City Attorney. 

PROPOSED MOTION: 

Move to enter into executive session pursuant to KCC 2.04.lO0(b)(l) and (c) to discuss legal 
matters, the immediate knowledge of which would clearly have an adverse effect upon the 
finances of the City. 

FEBRUARY 13, 2020 
Agenda Item X. a. Memo Page l of l 

70


	Agenda
	Draft Minutes of 20200123 Council Regular Meeting
	UNFINISHED BUSINESS
	IV.a. Second Reading and Public Hearing, Ord. No. 1392, Authorization of a 25 Year Lease of Certain Real Property in Trident Basin to Redemption, Inc. D/B/A Island Air Service
	IV.a. Attachment A - Ord. No. 1392
	IV.a. Attachment B - Lease Agreement
	IV.a. Attachment B - Trident Basin Lease Site Map
	IV.a. Attachment C - Redemption Air Lease Application
	IV.a. Attachment C - Redemption Air Request for Lease Letter to City Manager


	NEW BUSINESS
	V.a. Res. No. 2020-06, Adopting an Alternative Method for the FY2020 Shared Fisheries Business Tax Program and Certifying That This Allocation Method Fairly Represents Distribution of Significant Effects of Fisheries Business Activity in Fisheries Management Area 13: Kodiak Area
	V.a. Attachment A - Res. No. 2020-06
	V.a. Attachment A - Shared Fisheries Business Tax Allocation

	V.b. Res. No. 2020-07, Appointing a Member to the Kodiak Fisheries Development Association
	V.b. Attachment A - Res. No. 2020-07
	V.b. Attachment B - KFDA Roster and Whiddon's Application

	V.c. Res. No. 2020-08, Rescinding Resolution No. 2012-05 and Re-Establishing Standing and Special Rules of the Council
	V.c. Attachment A - Res. No. 2020-08

	V.d. Approval of Verticial Bridge Sublease to Cellco Partnership, D/B/A Verizon Wireless
	V.d. Attachment A - Vertical Bridge Request to Sublease
	V.d. Attachment B - Vertical Bridge Sublease with Verizon

	V.e. Acceptance of the FY 2019 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report and Audit
	V.f. Authorization of Payment to Golden Alaska Excavating, LLC for Equipment/Operator Cost Contracted Work at the Snow Dump
	V.f. Attachment A - Golden Alaska Excavating, LLC Invoice


	EXECUTIVE SESSION
	X.a. Discussion with the City Attorney About the City of Kodiak-Ocean Beauty Lease Agreement Post Termination Issues


	New Lease: Yes
	Amendment: Off
	Recontract: Off
	BTS Anchor: Off
	APP VERS ION: 
	LEASE: 
	AMENDMENT: 
	GTP-RLM Email: tmcclurg@verticalbridge.com
	GTP-RLM Phone: 206-719-1639
	GTP Site N umber: US-AK-5170
	GTP Site Name: Pillar Mountain
	Appli catio n Date: 05/28/2019
	Revision D ates: 
	RSM Approv a l: 
	Carrier Name: Verizon Wireless
	Carrier S ite Number: NA
	Carrier S ite Name: Kodiak Mountain
	Contact Name: Bryan Adams
	Contact Number: 206-715-6499
	Contact Fax: 
	Carrie r Le ga l E ntity N ame: Cellco Partnership, d/b/a Verizon Wireless
	State of registration: Delaware
	T ype of entity LP LLC C orp d b a If applicable: 
	Notice Address for Lease: Verizon WirelessAttn: Network Real Estate180 Washington Valley RoadBedminister, NJ 07921
	With copie s to: 
	Carrier Invoice Address: 
	Carrier Invoice Contact  Name T itle Phone N o: 
	Contact Address: 3245 158th Avenue, SEBellevue, WA 98008
	Contact Email: bryan.adams@verizonwireless.com
	Additiona l Email: 
	Other: 
	Carrier NOC: 1-800-264-6620
	Leasing Contact: Verizon Wireless / Anna Lee-Thompson / 503-408-3464
	RF Contact: Jeff Culley / 503-408-3418
	Construction Contact: Travis Nichols / 425-531-5224
	Emergency Contact N ameN umber: 1-800-264-6620
	Latitude  Longitude: 57.7905025 
	Latitude  Longitude_2: -152.4257003 
	Existing Structure Type: Guyed Tower
	Existing Structure Height: 103
	Site Address: Pillar Mountain Rd.
	Type of Technology: LTE, PCS, AWS
	Licensed or Unlicensed: [Licensed]
	TX Frequency MHz: 880.02-889.98 & 891.51 - 893.97 / 746-757 / 1940-1945 / 2120-2130
	RX Freque nc y MHz: 835.02 - 844.98 & 846.51 - 848.97 / 776-787 / 1860-1865 / 1720-1730
	Unlicensed Frequency Channels: 
	Brief Description of Scope: VZW proposes to install (6) 8' panel antennas, (3) 4449 RRUs, (1) 4' MW Dish, (2) runs E105 Wave guide, (1) OVP, (1) run of hybrid cable, (1) GPS, (1) run of 1/2" coax to GPA, (1) 32"x28"x84" cabinet, and (1) 20kw Generac diesel, and roughly 80 sq. ft. ground space.
	Equipment T ype ex panel T MA RRURow1: 
	RAD1: 
	Mount Height 1: 
	Mount Type1: [  ]
	Equip QtyRow1: 
	Equipment ManufacturerRow1: 
	Equipment Mode l Row1: 
	Equip D im HxWxD  ft or inRow1: 
	Equip We ight lbsRow1: 
	AzRow1: 
	Remain Y-N1: [  ]
	Equipment T ype ex panel T MA RRURow2: 
	RAD2: 
	Mount Height 2: 
	Mount Type2: [  ]
	Equip QtyRow2: 
	Equipment ManufacturerRow2: 
	Equipment Mode l Row2: 
	Equip D im HxWxD  ft or inRow2: 
	Equip We ight lbsRow2: 
	AzRow2: 
	Remain Y-N2: [  ]
	Equipment T ype ex panel T MA RRURow3: 
	undefined_2: 
	Mount Height 3: 
	Mount Type3: [  ]
	Equip QtyRow3: 
	Equipment ManufacturerRow3: 
	Equipment Mode l Row3: 
	Equip D im HxWxD  ft or inRow3: 
	Equip We ight lbsRow3: 
	AzRow3: 
	Remain Y-N3: [  ]
	Equipment T ype ex panel T MA RRURow4: 
	undefined_3: 
	Mount Height 4: 
	Mount Type4: [  ]
	Equip QtyRow4: 
	Equipment ManufacturerRow4: 
	Equipment Mode l Row4: 
	Equip D im HxWxD  ft or inRow4: 
	Equip We ight lbsRow4: 
	AzRow4: 
	Remain Y-N4: [  ]
	Equipment T ype ex panel T MA RRURow5: 
	undefined_4: 
	Mount Height 5: 
	Mount Type5: [  ]
	Equip QtyRow5: 
	Equipment ManufacturerRow5: 
	Equipment Mode l Row5: 
	Equip D im HxWxD  ft or inRow5: 
	Equip We ight lbsRow5: 
	AzRow5: 
	Remain Y-N5: [  ]
	Equipment T ype ex panel T MA RRURow6: 
	undefined_5: 
	Mount Height 6: 
	Mount Type6: [  ]
	Equip QtyRow6: 
	Equipment ManufacturerRow6: 
	Equipment Mode l Row6: 
	Equip D im HxWxD  ft or inRow6: 
	Equip We ight lbsRow6: 
	AzRow6: 
	Remain Y-N6: [  ]
	Equipment T ype ex panel T MA RRURow7: 
	undefined_6: 
	Mount Height 7: 
	Mount Type7: [  ]
	Equip QtyRow7: 
	Equipment ManufacturerRow7: 
	Equipment Mode l Row7: 
	Equip D im HxWxD  ft or inRow7: 
	Equip We ight lbsRow7: 
	AzRow7: 
	Remain Y-N7: [  ]
	Equipment T ype ex panel T MA RRURow8: 
	undefined_7: 
	Mount Height 8: 
	Mount Type8: [  ]
	Equip QtyRow8: 
	Equipment ManufacturerRow8: 
	Equipment Mode l Row8: 
	Equip D im HxWxD  ft or inRow8: 
	Equip We ight lbsRow8: 
	AzRow8: 
	Remain Y-N8: [  ]
	Equipment T ype ex panel T MA RRURow9: 
	undefined_8: 
	Mount Height 9: 
	Mount Type9: [  ]
	Equip QtyRow9: 
	Equipment ManufacturerRow9: 
	Equipment Mode l Row9: 
	Equip D im HxWxD  ft or inRow9: 
	Equip We ight lbsRow9: 
	AzRow9: 
	Remain Y-N9: [  ]
	Equipment T ype ex panel T MA RRURow10: 
	undefined_9: 
	Mount Height 10: 
	Mount Type10: [  ]
	Equip QtyRow10: 
	Equipment ManufacturerRow10: 
	Equipment Mode l Row10: 
	Equip D im HxWxD  ft or inRow10: 
	Equip We ight lbsRow10: 
	AzRow10: 
	Remain Y-N10: [  ]
	Equipment T ype ex panel T MA RRURow11: 
	undefined_10: 
	Mount Height 11: 
	Mount Type11: [  ]
	Equip QtyRow11: 
	Equipment ManufacturerRow11: 
	Equipment Mode l Row11: 
	Equip D im HxWxD  ft or inRow11: 
	Equip We ight lbsRow11: 
	AzRow11: 
	Remain Y-N11: [  ]
	Equipment T ype ex panel T MA RRURow12: 
	undefined_11: 
	Mount Height 12: 
	Mount Type12: [  ]
	Equip QtyRow12: 
	Equipment ManufacturerRow12: 
	Equipment Mode l Row12: 
	Equip D im HxWxD  ft or inRow12: 
	Equip We ight lbsRow12: 
	AzRow12: 
	Remain Y-N12: [  ]
	Equipment T ype ex panel T MA RRURow13: 
	undefined_12: 
	Mount Height 13: 
	Mount Type13: [  ]
	Equip QtyRow13: 
	Equipment ManufacturerRow13: 
	Equipment Mode l Row13: 
	Equip D im HxWxD  ft or inRow13: 
	Equip We ight lbsRow13: 
	AzRow13: 
	Remain Y-N13: [  ]
	Equipment T ype ex panel T MA RRURow14: 
	undefined_13: 
	Mount Height 14: 
	Mount Type14: [  ]
	Equip QtyRow14: 
	Equipment ManufacturerRow14: 
	Equipment Mode l Row14: 
	Equip D im HxWxD  ft or inRow14: 
	Equip We ight lbsRow14: 
	AzRow14: 
	Remain Y-N14: [  ]
	Line T ypeRow1: 
	Line S ize InchesRow1: 
	T otal  of LinesRow1: 
	Coax inte rior or exterior for monopolesRow1: 
	Remain Y-N15: [  ]
	Comme ntsRow1: 
	Line T ypeRow2: 
	Line S ize InchesRow2: 
	T otal  of LinesRow2: 
	Coax inte rior or exterior for monopolesRow2: 
	Comme ntsRow2: 
	Remain Y-N16: [  ]
	Line T ypeRow3: 
	Line S ize InchesRow3: 
	T otal  of LinesRow3: 
	Coax inte rior or exterior for monopolesRow3: 
	Remain Y-N17: [  ]
	Comme ntsRow3: 
	Line T ypeRow4: 
	Line S ize InchesRow4: 
	T otal  of LinesRow4: 
	Coax inte rior or exterior for monopolesRow4: 
	Remain Y-N18: [  ]
	Comme ntsRow4: 
	Equipment T ype ex panel T MA RRU ice shieldsRow1: Panel
	RAD feetRow1: 75
	Mount He ight feetRow1: 
	Mount Type15: [  ]
	Equip QtyRow1_2: 6
	Equipment ManufacturerRow1_2: Commscope
	Equipment Mode l Row1_2: NHH-65C-R2B
	Equip D im HxWxD  ft or inRow1_2: 96" x 11.9" x 7.1"
	Equip We ight lbsRow1_2: 51.6
	Az imuthRow1: 
	Equipment T ype ex panel T MA RRU ice shieldsRow2: RRU
	RAD feetRow2: 75
	Mount He ight feetRow2: 
	Mount Type16: [  ]
	Equip QtyRow2_2: 3
	Equipment ManufacturerRow2_2: Ericsson
	Equipment Mode l Row2_2: 4449
	Equip D im HxWxD  ft or inRow2_2: 15"  x 13.2" x 9.3"
	Equip We ight lbsRow2_2: 70
	Az imuthRow2: 
	Equipment T ype ex panel T MA RRU ice shieldsRow3: OVP/SSB
	RAD feetRow3: 75
	Mount He ight feetRow3: 
	Mount Type17: [  ]
	Equip QtyRow3_2: 1
	Equipment ManufacturerRow3_2: Raycap
	Equipment Mode l Row3_2: RxxDC-1064-PF-48
	Equip D im HxWxD  ft or inRow3_2: 15.95" x 8.15" x 10.15"
	Equip We ight lbsRow3_2: 12.1
	Az imuthRow3: 
	Equipment T ype ex panel T MA RRU ice shieldsRow4: MW Dish
	RAD feetRow4: 75
	Mount He ight feetRow4: 
	Mount Type18: [  ]
	Equip QtyRow4_2: 1 
	Equipment ManufacturerRow4_2:  RFS
	Equipment Mode l Row4_2: SUX4-107 
	Equip D im HxWxD  ft or inRow4_2: 4' MW 
	Equip We ight lbsRow4_2: 77 
	Az imuthRow4: 
	Equipment T ype ex panel T MA RRU ice shieldsRow5: GPS 
	RAD feetRow5: 75
	Mount He ight feetRow5: 
	Mount Type19: [  ]
	Equip QtyRow5_2: 1 
	Equipment ManufacturerRow5_2:  Generic
	Equipment Mode l Row5_2:  GPS
	Equip D im HxWxD  ft or inRow5_2: 12" x 9" x 6"
	Equip We ight lbsRow5_2: 10
	Az imuthRow5: 
	Equipment T ype ex panel T MA RRU ice shieldsRow6:   
	RAD feetRow6: 
	Mount He ight feetRow6: 
	Mount Type20: [  ]
	Equip QtyRow6_2:  
	Equipment ManufacturerRow6_2: 
	Equipment Mode l Row6_2:  
	Equip D im HxWxD  ft or inRow6_2: 
	Equip We ight lbsRow6_2: 
	Az imuthRow6: 
	Equipment T ype ex panel T MA RRU ice shieldsRow7:  
	RAD feetRow7: 
	Mount He ight feetRow7: 
	Mount Type21: [  ]
	Equip QtyRow7_2: 
	Equipment ManufacturerRow7_2: 
	Equipment Mode l Row7_2: 
	Equip D im HxWxD  ft or inRow7_2: 
	Equip We ight lbsRow7_2: 
	Az imuthRow7: 
	Equipment T ype ex panel T MA RRU ice shieldsRow8: 
	RAD feetRow8: 
	Mount He ight feetRow8: 
	Mount Type22: [  ]
	Equip QtyRow8_2: 
	Equipment ManufacturerRow8_2: 
	Equipment Mode l Row8_2: 
	Equip D im HxWxD  ft or inRow8_2: 
	Equip We ight lbsRow8_2: 
	Az imuthRow8: 
	Equipment T ype ex panel T MA RRU ice shieldsRow9: 
	RAD feetRow9: 
	Mount He ight feetRow9: 
	Mount Type23: [  ]
	Equip QtyRow9_2: 
	Equipment ManufacturerRow9_2: 
	Equipment Mode l Row9_2: 
	Equip D im HxWxD  ft or inRow9_2: 
	Equip We ight lbsRow9_2: 
	Az imuthRow9: 
	Equipment T ype ex panel T MA RRU ice shieldsRow10: 
	RAD feetRow10: 
	Mount He ight feetRow10: 
	Mount Type24: [  ]
	Equip QtyRow10_2: 
	Equipment ManufacturerRow10_2:  
	Equipment Mode l Row10_2: 
	Equip D im HxWxD  ft or inRow10_2: 
	Equip We ight lbsRow10_2: 
	Az imuthRow10: 
	Equipment T ype ex panel T MA RRU ice shieldsRow11: 
	RAD feetRow11: 
	Mount He ight feetRow11: 
	Mount Type25: [  ]
	Equip QtyRow11_2: 
	Equipment ManufacturerRow11_2: 
	Equipment Mode l Row11_2: 
	Equip D im HxWxD  ft or inRow11_2: 
	Equip We ight lbsRow11_2: 
	Az imuthRow11: 
	Equipment T ype ex panel T MA RRU ice shieldsRow12: 
	RAD feetRow12: 
	Mount He ight feetRow12: 
	Mount Type26: [  ]
	Equip QtyRow12_2: 
	Equipment ManufacturerRow12_2: 
	Equipment Mode l Row12_2: 
	Equip D im HxWxD  ft or inRow12_2: 
	Equip We ight lbsRow12_2: 
	Az imuthRow12: 
	Equipment T ype ex panel T MA RRU ice shieldsRow13: 
	RAD feetRow13: 
	Mount He ight feetRow13: 
	Mount Type27: [  ]
	Equip QtyRow13_2: 
	Equipment ManufacturerRow13_2: 
	Equipment Mode l Row13_2: 
	Equip D im HxWxD  ft or inRow13_2: 
	Equip We ight lbsRow13_2: 
	Az imuthRow13: 
	Equipment T ype ex panel T MA RRU ice shieldsRow14: 
	RAD feetRow14: 
	Mount He ight feetRow14: 
	Mount Type28: [  ]
	Equip QtyRow14_2: 
	Equipment ManufacturerRow14_2: 
	Equipment Mode l Row14_2: 
	Equip D im HxWxD  ft or inRow14_2: 
	Equip We ight lbsRow14_2: 
	Az imuthRow14: 
	Equipment T ype ex panel T MA RRU ice shieldsRow15: 
	RAD feetRow15: 
	Mount He ight feetRow15: 
	Mount Type29: [  ]
	Equip QtyRow15: 
	Equipment ManufacturerRow15: 
	Equipment Mode l Row15: 
	Equip D im HxWxD  ft or inRow15: 
	Equip We ight lbsRow15: 
	Az imuthRow15: 
	Line S ize InchesCoax: 1/2" / E105
	T otal  of LinesCoax: 1 / 2
	Coax inte rior or exterior for monopolesCoax: 
	Comme ntsCoax: designated for GPS / Elliptical for 4' MW
	Line S ize InchesRET Home Run C able:  
	T otal  of LinesRET Home Run C able:  
	Coax inte rior or exterior for monopolesRET Home Run C able: 
	Comme ntsRET Home Run C able: 
	Line S ize InchesFiber: 1.49"
	T otal  of LinesFiber: 1
	Coax inte rior or exterior for monopolesFiber: 
	Comme ntsFiber: Hybrid
	Line S ize InchesDC Pow er: 
	T otal  of LinesDC Pow er: 
	Coax inte rior or exterior for monopolesDC Pow er: 
	Comme ntsDC Pow er: 
	TOTALPane l Antenna s: 6
	TOTALOmniWhip Antenna s: 
	TOTALRRU: 3
	TOTALT MA: 
	TOTALDiplexer  T riplexer: 
	TOTALBias T: 
	TOTALSurge S uppress or: 1
	TOTALMW D ish: 1
	TOTALIce Shield: 
	TOTALODU: 
	TOTALFilter: 
	TOTALCombine r: 
	TOTALJunction Box: 
	TOTALRET: 
	TOTALEquipment Ca binets: 1
	Other equip 1: GPS
	TOTALOther P lease specify: 1
	Other equip 2: 
	TOTALOther P lease specify_2: 
	Other equip 3: 
	TOTALOther P lease specify_3: 
	Other equip 4: 
	TOTALOther P lease specify_4: 
	Other equip 5: 
	TOTALOther P lease specify_5: 
	TOTALCoax: 1 / 2EW
	TOTALHybrid: 1
	TOTALCAT 5: 
	TOTALDCPow er: 
	TOTALRET_2: 
	TOTALFiber: 
	GroundAreaL: 10
	GroundAreaW: 8
	CabinetAreaL: 
	CabinetAreaW: 
	Cabinet Install Type: [   ]
	ShelterAreaL: 
	ShelterAreaW: 
	Shelter Manufacturer: 
	RooftopAntennaAreaL: 
	RooftopAntennaAreaW: 
	Antenna Sled L: 
	Antenna Sled W: 
	Antenna Wall L: 
	Antenna Wall W: 
	Numbe r of Cabinets Required: 1
	Cabinet Dimensio ns L x W x H: 32" x 28" x 84"
	Manufacturer: Charles
	Numbe r of Cabinets Required_2: 
	Cabinet Dimensio ns L x W x H_2: 
	Manufacturer_2: 
	Numbe r of Cabinets Required_3: 
	Cabinet Dimensio ns L x W x H_3: 
	Manufacturer_3: 
	Equipment C abi net Comments: 
	Generator Required: [New]
	Gen Fuel Type: [Diesel   ]
	Generator Size: 20 kw
	Generator Pad Dimensio ns: 3 x 9
	Generator Manufac turer: Generac
	Generator Fuel Tank Pad Dimensio ns: 
	Fuel Tank Manufacturer: 
	Meter: [   ]
	Estimated Monthly Uti lity Usage A mount: 
	Voltage: 
	Total Amperage: 
	Fiber Provider: 
	Number of Points of Entry: 
	Condui tRiser Size i n i nc hes: 
	If wet s eals required pleas e provide address: 
	ADD IT ION AL C O MMENT SRow1: 
	Fiber Status: [   ]
	Backhaul Cable Type: [   ]
	Structural Hardcopies YN: [  ]
	Number of Stuct Hardcopies: 


